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B CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

Dear Sharehclder,

It is with great satisfaction that | present Uecomm's Arnuai Report for
2003. | am happy to report that over the past year Uscomm has
continrued to achieve impressive growth and pertormance. By remaining
focused cn our customers' busiress needs, we have defivered very
good resulis in today's competitive telecoemmunications market.

Tre telecommunications market has been characterised by relatively
flat growth, yet Uscomm has defivered a remarkable performance.
We signed new sales cortracts in 2003 valued at $58.0 million and
increased total revenue by 42 per cert, o $63.3 milion.

The driving force behind 2003's strong financial performance was a
singular focus on our business strategy. Uscomm’s missicn is to be
the leading provider of high guality data commuricaticns soluticns to
the corporate, government and whelesale markets.

Our competitive advantage Hes in owning our own fibre-cpiic network
that spans more than 2000 kilemetres in the CBD, metropelitar and
outer metropclitan areas of Australia’'s major capital cities. Focused
maragement and staff, guality producis ard high-value data services
have positioned Uecomm to win major corporate and government
contracts. We can alsc provide whole-of-retwork soiutions by leasing
network access from other telecommunications carriers.

Our business strategy has enabled us to emerge strengly from a
difficult pericd n the teleccmmunications industry. For many [T&T
firms, 2003 was & year of rationalisation and consclidation. For
Uscomm, it was a year of nctable achievemenis and profit growth,

Uecomm is wel: positioned to benefit from emercing opporiunities ir
the Australian telecommunications marketplace. We are a specialist
company ir & market of generalists. This deliberaie posifioring
strateqy sets us apart from the “cne-stop-shop” telecommunicaticns
providers.

Uecomm's fiexible ard customer-criented approach belps us
consistenily win contracts fc provide large organisations with their
broacbard data networks. This individual approach demonsirates the
Corapany's cther grest strength — our pecple. It creates a framework
across the busiess and affows Uecomm to develop the customer
refaticnships or which the future of cur business is based.

The pasi year saw some changes within Uscomm. In July, cur major
sharenclder Urited Energy Limited was acquired by interests
associated with AMP and Alinta Limited. As part of the acquisition,
Urited Erergy's 86 per cent shareholding in Uscornm and our

380 millicr: funding facility were frarsiered to Alinta

After the exit of United Energy as Uecomm’s major sharehclder,
Board members Bob Holzwarth, Doug Evanson and Keith
Starmm stocd down as directors. 1 welceme the appeiniment of
Tim Hestey and John Cabdl ic the Board. They bring extensive
firancial ard public company experience, complementing the
indusiry and financial expertise of current Board members.

On behalf of my fellow directors, | would fike to thank
Uecomm custorrers and shareholders for their support and
loyaity. { would like fo recognise the efforts of Uecomm's
management team and staff who were respersible for the
Cempanry's streng finarcial and cperational performance in
2003. Their efforts have ensured Uecomm is well placed to
meet challenges and take advantace of opportunities, We
lock torward to reporting more successes threughout 2004,

. e

Patar Shore
Chairman
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# CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW

The 2003 financial year was a period of continued
streng periormance tor Uscomm against a backdrop
ot ongoing [TAT industry rationalisation and
increased competitive pressure. Impressive revenuge
growth through continued strong sales performance
has led to eight consecutive quarters of EBITDA
growth. The resulting profit performance for the year
is testament to the success of our business stralegy.

Totai revenue tor the year was $83.3 milion, up

42 per cent on 2002. Core revenue from operations
exciuding significant #ems was $58.0 milion, up B8
per cent on the previous year. Eamings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
exciuding significant #ems was $22.0 milion, more
than four times higher than the 2002 result. The
improvernent in Uecorm'’s underying business was
also evident in & strong profit result. Profit before tax
was $3.2 milion - a $12.5 mifion fumaround on
D002 - while profi after tax was $10.3 milion,

IT MAS BEEN ANCTHER STRONG YEAR FOR UECOMM. WE HAVE BUILT ON THE PREVIOUS
YEAR'S ACHIEVEMENTS AND MET THE FINANCIAL TARGETS PROVIDED TO THE MARKET
DURING 2003. WE MOVE INTCG 2004 WELL POSITIONED TC CAPITALISE ON OUR STRENGTHS.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS ARE KEY

During the year ended 31 December 2003,
Uecomm signed over 500 new sales contracis with a
value of $B8.0 mition, demonstrating ancther solid
performance by our sales team. These contracts
have an average value of 3125000 and an average
term of 30 months. Almost 80 per cent of af new
sales contracts were with existing cusiomers,

Uecomm has aiso been very successiul
renewing exisiing customer contracts, with
$8.0 milion in contract renewais being signed,
taking the total value of sales contracts in the
yvear to about $66.0 milion.

The sales periommance reflects Uscomm's
successiui stralegy fo buld the core sirength of
the business by leveraging our existing customer
base for futere growth and vigorously pursuing
new business opportunities.
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2004 promises to be another good year for Uecomm.
We have a high profile and are well regarded within our {arget market,
and our products are in demand by customers.

MEETING CUSTOMERS’ BANDWIDTH REQUIREMENTS

At Uecomm, we are proud of cur Blue-chip cusiomer base.
Spanning the corporate and government sectors, our customers are
predominantly ranked in Ausiralia’s top 1500 by T spend.

These businesses and organisations have extensive high-speec data
commurications requirements, to which Uecomm's large fibre-oplic
network is ideally suited.

Our corporate customers include muitinationad, public and privete
companies such as Australian Unity, AXA Australia, Coles Myer,
Comaico, Celomado, National Foods, Spetlight and Transurban. |5 the
government sector our customers inciude the Metbourme Matropolitan
Fire and Emergency Services Board, the NSW Department of
Education and Training, Queensland Health, 5t John Ambulance
Austrafia (NSW), Yarra Valley Water and many Australian universities.

FIBRE-OPTIC NETWORK SETS NEW STANDARD

IN EDUCATION

Cne of Uscomm’s most significant achievernents of 2003 was the
completion of the NSW Department of Education and Training fibre-
optic retwork. Construction of this network involved rofling out fibre-

based Ethernet data senvices to over 200 schools and TAFE coileges in

metropaolitan and cutes-metropalitan Sydnay.

NETWORK REACH A KEY TO COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE
Uecomm's extensive fibre-oplic network is a key feature of our
competitve advantage. By the close of 2003, Uscormm's network
sparned moze than 2000 kilormetres in Austrafia’s major capital cities.

Connecting geographically dispersed offices is essential to our
customers, paricularly large corporations. Over the year, Uecomm has
extended its delivery capacily through complemestary products that
increase our network reach and product enhancements. We intreduced
new connection options for our flagship Ethemet Virtual Locat Area
Network (VLAN} senvice that have significantly increased our network's
geographic resch.

We exiended our delivery capacily fo inciuds infernational connectivity
for our high-speed daiz customers. This means Adstralian-basec
enterprises can enjoy intemational data connections to a rumber of
locations outside Australia via the Uecomm network.

SALES BY CUSTOMER GROUPING 2003

i




During the year, Uecomm staried commercial operations in Canberra ~
Australia's capital city and the larges? single govemment marketplace.
The netwerk enfancement is strategically significant, giving Uecomm
access to more than 170 government buildings.

In 2003, Uscomm invested more than $10.0 miion in network and
sysiem upgracdes and enfancements, including:

# an upgrade of the Ethemet switching network to provide increased
capacity and enhanced features;

» the introduction of a service perdformance system to erable
customers io monitor siatistics such as neiwork availability and
utilisation online; and

# imgplementing & new ordering and pravisioning sysiem to enhance
the cusiomer connection and provisioning process.

SIGNIFICANT ITEMS

The 2003 financial year was notable for the finalisation of the sale of
our Perth network and the transfer of United Energy's 68 per cent
sharehoiding in Uecamm to Alinta.

In fate 2002, we agreed fo sell the Perth network to Wesiem Power
We retained the right to use capacity on the network, The transaction
was finalised in Apit 2003,

interests associated with AMP and Alinta assumed conrtrof of
Uecomm's major shareholder, United Energy, in July 2003 and witk it
the abligations for the $80.0 milion funding facility. The facility is
provided snder contract with Alinta and cannot be altered without
Uecomm's consent,

ANCTHER PROMISING YEAR AHEAD

Uscomm’s success in 2003 has positioned us for strong growts.

We have set a clear strategic direction for the Company and have the
products and network strength fo provide the best value for our
custorners,

SOLUTION PROFILE
QUEENSLAND UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY (QUT)
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ANMUAL REPORT 2003

Forecasts of a cyclical uptum in the T&T industry and a gereralised pick-
up in the Australian and global economies during 2004 should create
conditions tavourable to continued growth. The data communications
markeat in Acsiralia is reported to be worth $2.7 biflion, and growing.

Uecomm is well placed to capitalise on our isherent strengths in this
market. We are a highly respected specialist provider of high-speed
data services, our products are in demand and our nefworks are locaied
in the centres of strongest growth.

Tre healthy business outlook is reflective of Uecomm's sfrong
management and consistent growth over several years. Our robust sales
pipeline also points to steady growth in revenue and profits over 2004,

In 2004 we are forecasting continued growth in the business, inciuding:
¢ operating revenue between $70 million and $80.0 milon;

¢ EBITDA of approximately $3C.0 milion; and

« capitat expenditure of approdmately $20.0 mitlion.

Cuwr target is fo be cash-fiow positive in 2004 after capital expenditure.
This will be a significant achievement for an infrastructure-based
ielecommunications company such as ourseives,

Many changes have taken place over the year and cur stakeholders
have shown great support. | take this opportunity to thank them all,
especially our customers.

The coming year holds great promise for Uecomm to add customers
from new markets and increase network utilisation and revenze.

Peter McGrath
Chief Execaiive Officer

SOLUTION PROFILE
MEDICAL BENEFITS AUSTRALIA LTD




2003 HIGHLIGHTS

CORE REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS*

2003 RESULT {BHLLIONS) 4% CHAMNGE FROB 02

68.0

faxvfiding sigificant items

EBITDA*

2003 RESULT {MILLIONS}

4% CHANGE FROB 02

$22.0

fexciuding signiicand dems

*331%
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RELIABLE AND EFFICIENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION 1S ESSENTIAL TC THE PURSUIT GF
COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE IN TODAY'S BUSINESS WORLD.

In addition to being = year of change within the
telecommunications industry, 2003 was a year in
which Uecomm’s competitive strengths came into
their own. We achieved growth and mainiained
strategic focus by continuing to defiver in-demand
products backed by outstanding service.

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE LIES IN

SPEED AND SECURITY

The strong synesgies between very fast fibre-optic
network connections and the levels of resikence,
security and scatability that this technology offers
provide Uecomm with & strong competitive
advardage. In 2003, the Company rolled out
numercus Wide Area Networks (WAN) for large
corporate customers.

Mutinationa! and blue-chip enterprises ase ameng the
new cusiomess to have experenced the addiional
value and security of Uscomm's fibre netwark.

Uscomm's extensive fibre-optic network is purpose-

built for today's businesses. While some other carriers’ networks
provide CBD coverage, Uscomm's netwark covers the greater
metropolitan areas of Sydney, Melboume, Brishane and the Gold Coast.
Uecomm also offers very high-speed fibre-based services in Canberra,
Adelaide and Pertf.

Customers use our managed network services to:

»  connect data networks within and between offices;

» deliver business applications to employee desktops;

» secure and replicaie data for disaster recovery;

» deliver voice and video iraffic between offices;

» make daiz storage sysiems accessible across a company; anc

v deliver business senvices to the Intemet and to connect businesses
to their suppliers and pariners.

Uecomm also delivers services to the wholesale market, providing third
parties with gecgraphic coverage that their own nefworks iack.
Whoiesale carriers and service providers also act as a channet io
smalier enterprises not dealt with by Uecomm’s direct sales force.
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# BUSINESS OVERVIEW 2003
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Cur sast coast network spans more than 2000 kilometres, reaching the
majority ot Ausirafian businesses and government organisations.

Curing the year we installed network facilities and estabfished a sales
otfice in Canberra. This investment enabled Uscomm fo provide a more
cost effective way of connecting the Federal Government and other
Canberra based customers to the national network.

Uecomm launched an international product in 2003 that uses Sprint

Telecommunications to pravide seadces for Australian customers with
overseas sites. The first customers fo take advantage of the service

were Sony Australia and Phillips Fox.

FIBRE-OPTICS POSITIONED FOR GROWTH

For the foreseeable future, fibre-optics is expected to remain the
only method of refiably transterring data over medium to long
distances at speeds of multipie gigabits per second. Advances in
technology mean that the speeds ai which data is sent can be
increased ai the flick of a switch or by replacing the equipment at
either end of a section of cable.

INVESTING IN OPPORTUNITIES FOR CUSTOMERS

Each year Uscomm nvests in future growth through customer-led

network expansion, network upgrades arnd echancemenis. Dusing

2003, we invested approdmately $30.0 milion upgrading and

enhancing the network and our IT systems. Warks undertaken included:

s uporading the capacity of the Ethemet equipment to provide
enhanced features;

& introducing & system to enable customers to moniter statistics such
as network availability and clilisation online; and

& implementing a new ardering and previsioning system fo streamiine
the cusiomer connection process. Benefits include automating the
design and quoting protesses, simpifying the resousce management
processes and reducing the time required o deliver new preducts.

A highlight of 2003 was the firafisation of designs for a network

upgrade io accommodate the accelerating growth in demand for very
high-speed data, video and voice services.

NEW ETHERNET PRODUCTS TO MEET CHANGING
BUSINESS NEEDS

Uecomm has infroduced new customer connection options that
increase network coverage and our addressable markel. These
products include DSL, copper lsased knes and cther fibre connections
that integraie inio the existing Ethemet VLAN prodact to senice our
cusiomers with muitiple sites.

Etheme! is a network communicaticss technoiogy that cennects people
and computers across multiple locations, aliowing dats fo be transferred
at very high speeds. Uecomm is & leader in the provision of Ethemne?
services. We were the first fo market with our Ethernet VLAN service in
2001, Ethernet’s inherent advantages cver fraditional communications
services make it ane of the Company's fastest growing products.

Ethernet can create a virtual network for organisations that operate
from muttiple locations. The advaniages of signiticantly increased
speeds of data transfer and grester fiexibility, witzout the need for
additicnal equiprent or the levei of training needed for some of the
tradiionat fechnologies, make Ethemet an atiractive propositiosn.

Organisations embracing the efficiency and cost benefite that Ethernet
can provide inciude healthcare groups, universities and schoals, banks,
manufactuding cperations and government agencies. Uecomm is very
ruch at the forefront of this technology.

MEETING THE NEEDS OF TOP 1500 COMPANIES

Uecomm's corporate and government cusicmers are predorinanily
organisations in the top 1500 by {T spend in Australia. That is,
businesses with high-speed and high quality data commusnications
requirements that can only be refiably deliverec over a fibre-optic
netwark. They include government bodies and muliinational private and
pubiic companies, Our customers operaie in sectors such as media,
firancial, manufacturing, retail, education and heslth.



HELPING CUSTOMERS DO BUSBINESS AT THE

SPEED OF LIGHT

The Uecomm network is usec by businesses whose data
communications systems are essential for real-time communication.

In many cases our customers have head office and branch office sites
that are geographically disbursed. Our staie-ci-the-art disaster recovery
service is used by financial institifions that process thousands of
transactions each second and casnct afford to have their data
communications systern fai

A large number of Uscomm's customers operate in the heaith sector
whete the beretits of applications run over a high-speed fibre-optic
network are invaiuable. Advances in telecommurications enable
speciafists to collaborale on research projects from locations across
the giobe. Using our network and producis, they can remotely view
patients’ pathology and radiciogy, provide diagnosis and recommend
treatmeant.

In the educstion sector, universities, TAFEs and schoois are able to
offer leading-edge teaching methods while saving time and money.
Old tefephone systems are being repiaced with Voice aver 1P (VolP),
where calls made within the network are effectively free of charge.
Correspondence courses that previcusly relied on posting out printed
brochures and study notes are mow provided electronically in real-time,

The Intemet has become a ink between ieachers, studenis and their
parerds, enzbiing students to form virtua! study groups with other
schocls anywhere in the word. Lectures and sessions presented by
speakers can be streamed io students in geographicaily dispersed
locations and then archived, enabling future classes to benetit from
these sessions.

it is in this context that lecomm's network and products are particularly
powerfui, A highlight of 2003 was the compiztion of the NSW
Department of Education and Training's fibre-opiic network. The project
irvoived rolling out fibre fo aver 200 schools and TAFE colfeges.

Schools and TAFES are abie to use the network to coilaborate with students from other
schocls and access the Intemet for research purposes. The speed at which data is
transmitted across the network is such that the department can sun time-sensitive
applications such as distance leaming, muitimedia video and cther tefecommunications
senices between schoois and TAFEs. Bardwidih-on-demand capability means that
senices can be upgraded at any time and with very little effort to meet school
reguirements.

The network, which was delivered shead of schedule to the Department, is one of the
most sophisticated in Australia.

NEW PRODUCTS, MORE GROWTH IN 2004

Uecomm entered 2004 in an exceilent position. A posiive economic environment and
strong market position point to continued eamings momentum going forward. Priorities for
2004 inciude expansion of our product suite, in particuiar using other carrers’ services as
a means of accessing Uecomm's Ethernet network where this is more cos? effective than
undertaking constrection ourselves. This wiil help us achieve our target in 2004 of being
free cash-flow positive. That is, to generate surplus cash afier all costs and capital
expendiiure.

We are proud of our reputation as a leading specialist telecommunications camier providing
quality services at compefitive prices. We intend to take full advariage of the substantial
oppartunities evailable in the Avstralian telecommunications market during 2004,
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# EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

PETER MCGRATH
Chief Executive Officer

Peter has exiensive exparience
in the telecommurications
industry, joining Uecoram from
AAPT's Connect Intermet
Sofutions, a leading corporate
Internet Services Provides,
where he was Chief Operaiing
Officer. Previously Peter was
Group General Manager,
Mergers and Acguisitions with
Telstra and, prior to that, Peter
spent time in corporate advisary
at ANZ Becurities and UBS
Warburg, Peter's easly career
was spent with Telstra in
product management and
engineering rales.

Peter has an MBA (Distinction)
from Melbourne Business School
and a Bachelor of Engineering
{Commusications) from RMIT.

*ANMUAL REPGRT 2003

PETER DAWSON
Chief Financial Officer

Peier is & Charered Accountant
with an extensive Australian and
Iternational cormmercial
background. Praviously with
United Energy, Peter helg the
position of General Manager,
Risk and Business Performance,
and was a member of the United
Energy Leadership Team. Peter had
substantial involvement in the isting
ot United Energy on the Australian
Stock Exchange in 998,

Peier has 25 years accounting
and audit experience and, prior to
ioining United Energy, spent 12
years with Coopers and Lybrang
in Australiz and the United
States, and six years with
Transfieid.

As Chiet Financiai Gfficer for
Uacomm, Peter is responsible for
the accounting, tax, fegal,
invesior reigtions and human
resources functions.

Peter holds a Bachelor of
Business {Accounting} from RMIT
ard is a Felow of the Inslitute of
Chrartered Accountanis in
Australiz,

DEAN TOGNELLA
Cormmercial & Business
Development Director

Dean joined Uscomm from
Connect, a subsidiary of AAPT,
where he provided commercial
and strategic analysis across the
operational business units. He
alsc gained sirategic
telecommunications experience
during & six-year career with
PricewaierhouseCoopers,

In addtion to business development
infiatives, Dean is responsibie for
the strategic management of
significars? bids ang company
contracts.

Dean hoids a Bachelor of
BHusiness from Swinborme
University of Techralogy, &
Graduate Dipioma in Applied
Finance and imvestment from the
Securities Instiute of Ausiratia
and is a member of the Instiute
of Charted Accouniznts in
Australiz,




TONY AZZOPARDI
Infrastructure Services
Director

An experienced
telecommunications professional,
Tory ioined Uscomm as
Infrastroctuse Services Director,
responsible for Cperations,
Networks and Information
Technology.

Tony brings a strong blend of
techrical ané commercial
experience to Uecomm, with
mare than 20 years in the
felecommunications industry
spanning various technoiogy
and management roles in
arganisations such as Teistra,
OTC, Telecommunications
Power, Cabie & Wirsless
{indonesia} and SMS
Managemen! & Technology,
both in Australia and overseas.

Teny was formetly the Director of
Strategic Development at SMS
Maragement and Technology, a
listed project management ang [T
services company.

NEIL VERRALL
Sales Director

Meil brings with him over

20 years telecommunications
experience. Neil held many
senior positions during His

18 year career with Telstra and
has & proven record of teading,
motivating and empowering sales
teams to achieve their targets
and secure new business.

Neil joined Uscomm from
Powertel, where he was the
Direcior of Sales and Marketing.
Prior to that Neil was the
Mationai General Manager at
Teistra where he was responsible
for Reiai and Wholesale Trade
and Major Account Sales.

Neil holds a Bachelor of Ars
from the Univessity of Adelaide
and a Post-Graduate Degree in
Management & Poiicy
Administraticn from the Flinders
University of South Austratia.

BRENDAN PARK
Products & Marketing
Director

More than 15 years in the
telecommunications industry has
provided Brendan with extensive
strategic positioning and product
management expetience.

Previously Brendan heid several
senior marketing roies at Nortel
including Regional Marketing
Manager. Prior to Noriel,
Brendan was a Senior Market
Anaiyst with Telstra and authored
Telstra's data strategy.

Brendan hoids an MBA from
Weibourne Business School
and a Bachelor of Engineering
frorm RMIT.
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# BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Uscomm as at the date of this repor, is comprised of:

L. PETER SHORE
B.5c

Non-Executive Chairman
30/07/2002

Appainted o the Board in July
2002, Peter has mose than

20 years experience in the
telecommunications indusiry.

He was a Group Managing
Director of Telstra Corporation
from 1995 to 2000, Peter is
aiso Chairman of Unwired, 2
lisied company that provides
wireless broadband services io
the consumer and small business
market and & director of
Haostworks Lid, a listed company
that provides comgplex internet
hosting. Peter is & member of
the Austrakan Advisory Board of
Siemerns. He hoids a Bachelor of
Science degree from Adelaide
University,

14 | *ANMUAL REPGRT 2003

M JOHN CRAVEN
B.5c., FAICD

Non-Executive Director
26/07/2000

Appairted to the Board on 26
July 2000, Johr is also
Managing Director of the
Terranavaie Group, a consuliing
fimm that speciafises in business
innavation and technology
marketing. Formezly the
Managing Pariner of Andersen
Consulting's (now Accenture)
Communication Market unit in
Austraiia, New Zealand and Asia,
fhig is a member of the Board of
Advisors of the Network Insight
Group and the C5IRO Sectar
Advisory Committes for
lnformation and Communication
Technology and is Chairman of
the Hubbub Group. John Bolds a
Bachelor of Science degree and
is & Fellow cf the Austrafian
Insttute of Company Directors.

LEIGH L HALL AM
B.Ec., FCA, FCPA, FCIS, FAlL FSIA

Non-Executive Director
20/07/2000

Appoiried to the Board in July
2000, Leich is a non-executive
director of Funds SA, Prims
Infrastructure Managemeant
Limited and Gresham
Technology Manzgement
Limited. He fiolds an Eccromics
degree from Sydney University.




ROBERT J STEWART
LLE {Hons), B.Com,, MBA

Non-Executive Director
26/07/2000

Appointed to the Board on 28
July 2000, Rob is also the
Chairrnan of Melbourne [T
Limited and Forest Enterprises
Australia Limited and is the
Depuy Chairman of Emitch
Limited. He retired in June 1989
after 11 years as Nationa
Managing Partner of Minter
Elison, one of Australia’s leading
lzw firms. Prior to that, he served
for nearly seven years as the
Managing Partaer of Ellisen,
Hewison 8 Whitehead, a
predecessor firm of Minter
Elison. He is aiso President of
the Business/Higher Education
Round Table; = director of the
Australasian Cardiac Surgery
Research Institidion Limited; a
member of the Board of the
Baker Medical Research Instifute
and & member of the Wesiey
College Council. Raob halcs
degrees in law and commerce
and & Masters degree from
Harvard Business School,

TIMOTHY C HEALEY
8.Fc., 8. Litt (Hens), FAICD

Non-Executive Director
24/07/20063

Appointed as a director on

24 July 2003, Tim has =
background in finance, economic
peiicy and development banking.
He is a nor-executive director of
Alinta Limited. He is a former
director of United Energy Limited
and & number of companies and
governmen? corparations.

Tim holds a Bachelor of
Economics Degree from the
University of Sydney and a
Bachelor of Letters (Hons)
Degree from Deakin University.
He is also a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company
Direciors.

JOHN R CAHILL
B.Bus., FCPA

Non-Executive Director
24/07/2003

Appainted fc the Beard on

24th July 2003, John s the
Chief Financial Officer of Alinta
Limited and the director of
varicus companies in the Alinta
group of companies. He has
over 20 years experience in the
energy indusiry in finance and
accounting. He holds a Bachelor
of Business with a major in
fingnce and economics trom the
Western Australian Institute of
Technology (now Curtin
University}, 2 Post-Graduate
Diploma of Business in
Professional Accocnting from
Edith Cowan University, a Feliow
of, and Councillor with, CPA
Ausiratia (Western Australian
division}, a member of the
Finance ang Treasury
Association and 2 member of the
Austratian Institute of
Management.
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COMPANY PARTICULARS

DIRECTORS
L Peter Shore
Non-Executive Chairman

Robert W Holzwarth

MNon-Executive Deputy Chairmarn
Resignation effective, 24th July 2003
M John Craven

Non-Executive Direclior

Leigh L Hali
Non-Executive Direcior

Robert } Stewart
Non-Executive Direcior

Keith G Stamm
Nor-Executive Direcior
Resignation effective, 24th July 2003

Pouglas P Evanson
MNon-Executive Direcior
Resignation effective, 24th July 2003

Tirmothy C Healy
Non-Executive Direcior
Appointment effective, 24th July 2003

John R Cahiil
Non-Executive Direclor
Appointment effective, 24th July 2003

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lyndon A Goulding

REGISTERED QFFICE
Building 8, 858 Church St
Richmond VIC 3121
Telephone +613 9221 4100
Facsimile +613 9021 4152
Wab: www. GeComm.Com.ag

BHARE REGISTRAR
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THE DIRECTORS PRESENT THEIR REPORT TOGETHER WITH THE FINANCIAL REPORT OF UECOMM LIMITED {*UECOMM"} AND THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY, BEING UECOMM AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES,
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003 AND THE AUDITORS' REPORT THEREON.

The cirecters of Uecomm at any time during or since
the end of the financial year are:

Non-Executive Chairman

- k3
Mon-Executive Deputy Chairman
(Resignation effective, 23 July 2008)
. Non-Executive Director
. i Non-Executive Director
. MNon-Executive Director
. i MNon-Executive Director
(Resignation effective, 28 july 2003)
. h Mon-Executive

Director (Resignation effective, 28 fuly 2003/

o DT AR L Non-Executive Director
(Appoiniment effective, 24 July 2003)

Non-Executive Director
(Appointment effective, 24 July 2003}

H ¢

Tre principal actvty of the consolidated entity during
the financial year was providing deta communication
senvices under contract within the corporate,

government and telecommunications service
provider markets.

During the year ended 31 December 2003,
there were significant changes o the business:

= in April 2003, the consclidated entity completed
the sale of its Perth network to Western Powes
Corparation; and

# in July 2003, Alinta Limited acquired United

Energy Limiied's 68 per cent shareholding in
Uecomm Limited.

Full detaits of the changes to the consolidated entity
during the year are contained in the Chief Executive
Officer's Review, which forms part of the Annual
Repart 2003

There wil be no dividend payabie in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2003 (2002: »il).

W T -

Uecorm Limited's consolidated cperating profit after

income tax for the financial year was $10.3 millon,
compared with a loss afier income ax of $5.5 million
for the previous year.

Revenue from ordinary activities was $63.3 mitlion,
an increase of $18.8 million on the pricr year, and
inciudes proceeds on the sale of the Perth network
aof 4.9 million fogether with proceeds on the sale
ot the otfer non-current assets of $0.3 million.
The revenue for 2002 inciuded a significant #tem of
$6.5 milkon arising from the contract settlement
with Lucent.

Core revenue from operations was $88.0 million, an
increase of $14.7 mitkon on the prior yeas, due to an
increase in connection fees of $4.7 mikion and an
increasa in service and usage-based fees of $10.0

milion. This is & resuit of the large number of
customers connecied to the network in 2003
foilowing the signing of a significant acumber of

customer contracts over the past two years.

Expenses from ordinary activities were $58.6 milion,
an increase of $5.0 million on the prior year.,
Exciuding $5.3 mifion of costs directly related to the
sale of the Perth network and other non-current

asseis, one-oif costs relating fo the change of



conirol evenis, depreciation and amortisation, and
one-off costs incurred in 2002, operating costs have
increasec by $5.0 milion. This increase primarily
related to an increase in employee numbers to
support the growth in revenue of the business.

An income tax credit of $7.1 milion was included in
the 2003 result. This was comprised of the future
incame tax benefit ($8.0 milien) on $30.0 milion of
tax losses, offset largely by the income tax expense
on the accounting profit befere tax and the tax effect
of current year tax iosses.

Except as disclosed in this report and the atfached
financial sistements, no matters or circumstances
have arisen between 31 December 2003 and the
date of this report that have significantly affected or
may significartly atiect the operations ot the
consoiidated entiy in future years, the results of
those operaticns or the state of affairs of the
censciidaied entity in future years.

Details of fkely developments in the operations of
the consolidated estity in future years are contained
in the Chairman's Letier and the Chief Execulive
Oificer's Review, which form part of the Annual
Report 2003, In the opinion of the directors,

disclosure of any further information wouid be ikely to result in unreasonable prejudice to
the consclidated entity’s operations. Accordingly, such information concerning these and
other potential developments and projected results have not been included.

Legislation affecting the operadions of the consciidated entity inciudes The Environment
Protection Act (1970} Vic. The consolidated entity did not receive any notices from the

Ervironment Protection Authority for any breaches of the Act during 2003,
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At 31 Decernber 2003, directors’ interests in Uecomm Limited shares and Alinta Limited shares and options were:

Director Uecomm Limited Lecomm Limited Uecomm Limited Uecomm Limited Alinta Limited

Shares Oplions investment Loan Share Plan ™ Shares/Options @

Share Plan

M John Craven 10,000 136,300 - 98,300 -
Leigh L Hali 252 700 - - - -
L Peter Shore 1,400,000 240,000 808,000 - -
Robert } Stewart 20,554 156,300 - 26,300 -
John R Cahiil - - - - 210,506
Timothy C Healey 19,000 - - - 30

The Loan Share Plan involves an inferest free non-recowrse foan being offered fo eligible employees, directors or a secretary of Uecomm to acquire shares.

#“ Mr Cahill bolds 185,000 options and 25,506 shares in Alinta. Mr Mesaley holds 32 reset preference shares in and is a director of Alinta,

During the year, Mr Stamm was Chairman and Messrs Holzwarth, BEvanson, Hall and
Healey wese directors of United Energy, which provided services fo Uscomm.
Refer to note 31 for farther information.
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The Board meets regularly during the year, with some meetings being held via felephone or

video conference.

Narmination and

The Cempany's Constitution has set the maximura annuai amount of aggregaie

remuneration. payable to all directors of the Company at $800,000. The Company

considers that, with the exception of the Chairman, who is remunerated $140,000
per annum, an amount of $53,000 per director per annurm is appropriate and within the

globat fimits set by shareholders. The directors resoived in 2002 to cap directors fees

Remuneration
. . . : for directors empioyed by the majority shareholder and/or its majority shareholder
Audit Committee Cormnittee (United E Limited and Aquia, Inc.) 2t $100,000 per an ) '
Board Meetings Meetings Meetings nited Energy Limited and Aquitz, Inc.) a , per annum in aggregate.
Fees paid Shares / Options Totai
A B A e A B Director $ $ $

Leigh L Hal 14 15 - -
Robert W Holzwarth A - - 2 2 MJohn Craver 50,000 - 50,000
L Peter Shore 19 19 - - 2 2 Douglas P Evanson * 16,667 - 16,867
M Jahr Craven w18 - - T 2 LeighL Ha 50,000 - 50,000
Robert J Stewart 1918 8 8 ©° Robert W Holwarth * 16,667 - 16,667
Keith G Stamm G 9 - - ~© L Peter Shore 7% 560 68,410 140,000
Dougias P Bvanson 8 9 G 6 - © Keith G Stamm 16,667 - 16,667
John R Cabill 8 & 2 2 - - Robert J Stewart 50,000 . 50,000
Timothy C Healey G 6 - - - ° John RCanil " 25,000 - 05,000
Timaothy © Heaiey 25,000 - 25,000

A = Number of meetings attended.

B = Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was & member of

the committee during the year and was not excluded from attending on grounds of materiat

personal interest.

" Fees payabie to directors who were also empioyees of associated companies were paid

o the associated companies rather than to these direciors.
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Uecomm'’s palicy is to employ quality executives, to compensate them compelitively with an
attractive remuneration structure and to reward for individual achievernent of key objectives
and demonstration of Uecomm’s values. Executive remuneration is reviewed annually,

recognising market movements, the Company's capacily o pay and individual performance.

Senior executive remuneration is made up of three components:

Fixed remuneration This element reflects the scope of the role and the level of skill and
experience of the individual and is generally referenced to the 75th percentile of the
zpplicable remuneration market.

Short-term incentives Short-term incentives are structured o reward the achievemnent of
business, group and individual annuat performance targets. This aspect of the reward
program considers aciuad achievements over the past year, The performance of the
Company and individual business units is the key factor in determining shori-term
incentives, which geserally apply to other selected staff as well as senior executives.

Long-term incentives Long-term incentives are an integra! past of the remuneration
program in fewarding an individual's contribution and potential contribution to the
Company's performance. They involve the issue of options ard pericrmance rights fo
executives. The current long-term incentive plan links the reward of the executive directly
to the share price growth and profi performance of the Company. This aspect of the
reward program focuses the executive on the future performance of the Company
over a three to five year horizon.

Performance rights were introduced in 2003 1o rebatance the long-term incentive plar.
Pricr fo their infroduction, almost ak of a senior executive’s long-term incentive was
provided in the form of options. From April 2003, half of the remuneration value previcusly
assigned to options is allocated in the form of performance rights. The introduction of
performance righis has reduced the number of options granted annually and ensures that
part of a senicr executive's long-term incentive remains active in situations where the
Group has mef the assigned performance hurdles but where options have no value.

Each option and performance right is granted over one ordinary share in the capital of the
Compary and pericrmance hurdles must be met before share options and performance
rights can be exercised.

For share options issued in 2003, the performance hurdle is the extent fo which the
Uecomm share price exceeds the exercise price of the options. For the performance rights
issued in 2003, the pericrmance hurdle is the extent to which Uscomm's EBITDA meets
the target set by the Board. For details of the exercise conditions for options issued in
earlier years and for a more detadled description of the performance hurdies, see “share
options and performance rights® detalled on pages 23 to 26.

Tre following table shows the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and of the
senior executive feam involved in the managemend of the consolidated entity during the
year ended 31 December 2003,

Cash Allocation of fair value

performance of all unvested options Options Performance

Salary hased Other Total cash and performance Total granted during rights granted

Name and Package remuneration = benefits @ remuneration rights remuneration 2003 = during 2603 ©
Position $ $ $ $ $ $ {No.) {No.)
Peter McG@rath CEO 400,000 120,000 - 520,000 £3,185 583,189 1,600,000 T70,713
Neil Verrail 276,750 aG,002 - 375,602 99,037 404 G589 620 568 319,842
Tony Azzopardi 245,000 48,000 - 244,000 91,607 315,607 6512500 314,708
Peter Davson 905,000 51,280 - 956,250 00 BTH 278,196 512500 983,397
Dean Tognella 180,000 45,000 - 905,000 19,275 244,375 450,000 231,214
Brendan Park 180,000 45,000 - 225,000 19,275 244 275 450,000 Q1,214
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% Reflects the total remuneration package consisting of both basic salary and packaged benefits, which could otherwise be iaken as cash.

“  Reflects performance-based remuneration accrued but not yef paid in respect of performance for the year to 31 December 2008

“  Reflects non-salary package remuneration and includes insurance premiums paid on the executive’s behalf.

' Refer below for an explanation of fair value based on the guidelines issued by ASIC.

“  The options were granted on 30 April 2003, af an exercise price of $0.1557 each, and are first exercisable on 30 Aprif 2005. No opfions have been granied fo senfor
executives since 31 December 2008, Refer o ‘share options and performance rights’ on pages 238 fo 26 for an explanation of the performance hurdle that must be achieved

before the opfions can be exercised.

#  The perfonmarnce righis are issued af no cost fo the employee. The performance rights were grantfed on 30 Apnil 2008 and are first exercisable on 30 Apnil 2005.
Mo performance rights have been granted fo senior executives since 31 December 2003. Refer fo 'share options and performance rights’ on pages 23 fo 26 for an explanation of
the performance hurdie that must be achieved before the performance rights can be exercised,

The disclosure of the alocation of fair value of aptions and pedormance rights in the fable
opposie has been based upon guidelines issued by ASIC in June 20033, These guidefines
have recard to the draft accounting standards ED 2 "Share-based Payment’ issued by the
international Accounting Stardards Board (JASB) and ED 108 *Request for Comment on IASB
ED 2 'Share-based Payment™ issued by the Australizn Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

in accordance with these guidelines, each year & portion of the fair value of ail unvested
options and performance rights is included in the remuneration of senior executives for
disclosure purposes. This partion of the fair value is based on a straighi-line allocation of
tair value over the expected life of each unvested option or perfarmance right.

Mo adjustments are made to reverse amounis in reigtion to options and performance rights
that never vest.

Prior to 3% Decemnber 2002, the Company disclosed the fair value of options granted
during the financial year using an option pricing model but did not allocate thase values
over their expected life for reporting remuneration. Rather, the ful? fair value of the grant
was disclosed as a benefit in the year of grant. As a resclt, incleded in the amounts
disclosed above as an aflocation of fair value of option and perdormance rights in refation to
2003, are amounts related to unvesied options granted in prior years that were disciosed

as pari of emoluments in the refevant prior years. This is a resuit of transitioning to the
reporiing principles required by ASIC,

In January 2004, the AASB issued AASE 1046 "Director and Executive Disclosures by
Disclosing Entities”. This standard will require all grants of equity corpensation which have
not vested before the start of & reporting pericd fo be included in determining the amaount

of remuneration disclosed.

Options and performance rights granted as part of executive remuneration have been
valued using an option pricing modet, which takes account of factors including the option
or performance right exercise price, the current level and volatiity of the underlying share
price, the risk-free interest rate, the expecied dividends on the underlying share, the
current market price of the underlying share, the expected life of the option and the
probability of the performance burdle being reached. For further details, refer fo note 2% in
the body of this report.

Share options and performance tights

The share opticns and periommance rights currenily issued by the Company are options
and periormance sights over crdinary shares granted by the Company under the Uscomm
Option and Performance Rights Pian. The number and terms of options and performance

MAUAL REPORT 2003 | 23



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

rights over ordinary shares grasted by the Company and the Company's valuation of those
options and performance rights at grant date are detailed beiow.

Dusing and since the end of 2003, the foliowing share options and performance rights
were granted to 32 senior employees {including the options and performance rights
granied to senior executives referred o on page 2U).

Options

The Uecomm Cption and Performance Rights Plan provides for the Board to grant options
to executives of the Group to subscribe for fUlly paid ordinary shares in the Company.
Options must not be granted i the fotal number of shares issued in the st tive years
under the Company's employee share or option pians and of outsianding options and
performance rights under #s plans, including the proposed offer or grant, exceeds 5% of
the number of shares in the issued share capitat of the Company at the time of the
proposed offer or grant. This calculation does not inciude ofters made, or shares or aptions
or performance righte granted, as = resuli of an offer or grant made to a person situated

outside Ausiraiia at the time of the offer or grant or which did not need disclesure under
section 708 ot the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Options 2re granted free of charge to participants in the Uecomm Option and Performance
Rights Plan. Each op¥ion is to subscribe for one tully paid ordinary share in the Company. The
exercise price per share for an option is the market price of the Company's fully paid ordinany
shares as &l the date the option was granted. The marke? price is determined as the weighted
average of the prices at which the Corpany’s fully paic ordinary shares wese traded on the
Austradian Stock Exchance (ASX) in the one week up to and incuding the refevant day.

Gererally, these options may not be exercised before the second anniversary of their grant,
and must be exercised before the fifth anniversary of their grant. Currently apticns granied
under the Uscomm Option and Performance Righis Plan have a jife of five years. The
Board may determine such other ferms tfor the grani of options consistent with the ASX
Listing Rules and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Fair Value as

Exercise price Held at 31 December, 2003 Lapsed during the period ® Granted at grant date @

Grant Date Exercise period ™ % {No.) {No.) {No.) %
Options
30 Apri 2003 30 April 2006 0.1557 7053,775 G 7055, 775 375,010

30 April 2008
Performance Righis
30 Aprit 2003 On 30 Aprit 2005 O 3,624,260 & 3,624 940 300,382
30 September 2003 Cn 30 wMarch 2005 O 370,000 G 370,000 az,870

' Share options and performance rights expire on the last day of their exercise period.

' These share options and performance rights fapse 30 days after the termination of employment unless otherwise determiined by the Board in accordance with their ferms.

' Falr values of options and performance rights are based on an oplion pricing model. For the purposes of this table, the fair value at grant date represents the full fair value in the
year of grant and has not been allocated over the expected life of the option or performance right. Refer above and o note 21 in the 2003 Annual Report for further information.
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The Board may aliow the option-folders to exercise the options irespective of the normal
criteria. For example, before the second annversary of grant and notwithsiznding the
periormance burdle, where certain events occur, such as the making of a tskeover otfer or
announcement to the holders of fully paid ordinary shares in the Company.

Exercise of the options is subjec? to satistaction of a performance hurdle. For share options
issoed in 2003, the performance hurdle is the extent to which the Uecomm share price
exceeds the exercise price of the options in accordance with the table below:

Parformance Rights

The Uescomm Option and Performance Rights Plan provides for the Board o grant
periormance rights to senior executives of the Group to subscribe for fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. Performance rights cannot be granted under the Plan it the
number cf shares io be received on exercise of those perdformance righis together with all

shares grarted cnder the Company’s empioyes incentive plans aver the last fve years and
the number of cuistanding options and pericrmance rights granted under those plans
exceeds 5% of the Company's issued share capital.

Perfarmance rights cannot be fransferred and are not cucied on the ASX. Each
performance right is a right to subscribe for one fully paid ordinary share in the Corapany.
Participants do not pay any amounts to the Company for the performance rights they
receive or to exercise their performance rights,

Ferformance sights may not be exercised before the second anniversary of their grani and
must be exercised on the secand anniversary of their grant. The Board may determine
such other terms for the grani of performance rights consistent with the ASX Listing Rules
and the Cormporations Act 2001(Cthy).

Performance Hurdle

Percentage of 2003
option allocation exercisable

» Share price at any time during the performance period does not exceed exercise price of 2003 Options Offer by 26% O%

» Share price at any time during the perdormance period exceeds exercise price of 2003 Options Offer by at least 25% but not 50% or more
» Share price at any time during the perdormance period exceeds exercise price of 2003 Options Offer by at least 50% but not 75% or more
» Share price at any time during the perdormance period exceeds exercise price of 2003 Options Offer by at east 75% but not 100% or more
» Share price at any time during the perdormance period exceeds exercise price of 2003 Ogptions Offer by at least 100%

25%
50%
75%
100%

Alz of the share price performance hurdies for the Options isszed in 2003 were achieved during 2003,

Notwithstanding the options satisfying the Pedormance Hurdies set out above, the proportion ot the total option allocation under the 2003 Options Offer that can be exercised wili depend
on the empioyes's continced employment with & Uecomm Group Company {in accordance with the fable below),

Employed beyond

Percentage of 2003
option allocation exercisable

30 April 2005
30 Aprit 2006

50%
50%
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Tre Beoard may allow performance righis holders to exercise their performance rights
irespective of the nommal criteria. (for example, before the second anniversary of grant and
notwithstanding the performance hurdle) where cerfain events cocue, such as the making of a
takeover offer or announcement fo the holders of tully paid ordinary shares in the Company.

for the performance rights issued in Aprit 2003, the performance hurdle is the extent o
which Uscomm's EBITDA meets the target set by the Board. The performance rights
issued in September 2003 were issued as & form of & retention bonus for a number of key
statf. For the performance rights issued in September 2003 the hurdle is the cordginued
empioyment with Uecomm for 18 manths, in that 50% of the rights offered wili be able to
be gocessed in September 2004 with the remaining 50% being able o be accessed in
March 20056,

The Group does niot recognise an expense in its profit and loss account for options or
performance rights. The 1ASB is currently finalising the dratting of a standard for
accounting for share-based payments (including employee share options and their
repricing}. The Company intends fo adopt the new standards in refstion to accounting
for share options once promulgated by the 1ASB and the AASE.

There were 3,830,000 fully paid crdinary shares of the Company issued during 2003 as &
result of options granted being exercised, for a total consideration of $564,300,

No performance rights were exercised during 2003, The amount paid on issue of each of
these shares is set out in note 21 o the financial statements in the 2603 Aznual Report.
There are currently 8,568,375 opfions and 3,984,280 performance rights outsiznding
under the respective plans as set cut in the foliowing table:

ANMUAL REPORT 2003

Hurdie Excercise Neo. of Options

Date of Options Price Price Date of {one share per
Granted % $ expiry Option)
30 April 2003 - 0.1557 3074708 7,053,775
9 August 2002 = - 012 /807 240,000
5 October 2007 = - 012 510706 +, 000,000
S September 2000 3.30 2.20 89/5/06 272,800
8,566,375

‘1

T4

Quotions are exercisable in three tranches. 33'% /s axercisable commencing the

second year from the date of grant, a further 3349 on the commencement of the
third year from the date of grani and the final 330 on the commencement of the
fourth year from the date of grant. The last date of exercise of any option is the fifth

anniversary from the date of grant and the exercise price is $2.20 with a hurdie price

of $3.30.



w Options are exercisable when the foflowing conditions are met:

Share price on ASX on day of exercise

Nurnber of options

capable of being exercised

Greater than or equal to $0.30
Greater than or equal to $0.60
Greater than or equal to $1.00

Greater than or equal to $2.00

5% of granted options
25% of granted options
25% of granted options

25% of granted options

' Exercise conditions for these options are discussed on page 25.

Date Righis Exercise Date of Numnber of Rights
Granted Price Expiry {One Share
per Right)
30 Apriz 2003 & On 30 April 2005 3,624,280
30 September 2003 O On 30 March 2006 370,000
3,994,290

Exercise conditions for these rights are discussed on pages 25 and 26.

During 2003, insurance and indemnity arrangements established in the previous years
were renewed at a premium of $195,878 (2002: $171,300). The insurance package
insures direciors and employess against lizbilities and expenses arising as a result of their
work, 1o the extant permitied by faw.

During the year, the Company also entered into insgrance and indemniy arrangements o
indemnify former directars of the consalidated ertity foilowing the change of control event
when Alista Limited became the controlling entity of Uscomm Limited.

The arrangement is for a pariod of six years for & one time premium of $968,807

and insures former directors against liabifities and expanses arising as a result of their
work, to the extent permitied by faw.

No person has applied o the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for
leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to
which the Carnpany is a party, for the purpose of fsking responsibiiity on behal? of the
Cempany for all or part of those proceedings.

A ]

The parent eniity is 2 Company of the kind specified in ASIC Class Order 88/0100.
The amounis in the financial sistements and the Directors’ Report have been rounded off
o the nearest thousand doilars ($'000) unless stated ctherwise.

This Report has been made in accordance with & resolution of the Board of Directors for
and on benalt of the directors.

Robert d Stewart

Direcior
Melboumne,
26 February 2004
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THE DIRECTORS OF UECOMM LIMITED ARE FULLY SUPPORTIVE OF, AND COMMITTED TO, MAINTAINING BEST PRACTICE IN CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE. IN PARTICULAR, DIRECTORS WELCOMED THE RELEASE OF THE AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE {'ASX") CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COUNCIL'S (CGC) *PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE™.

The Board's commitment to maintaining the highest

standards of ethical, respensible and accountable

behaviour led to a comprehensive review of the The Board's responsibilities to its shasehciders and the commurity are set cut in the Corperaie Governance
Company's corporate govemance peactices in Manua which is accessibie on the Company's web-sfte. These responsibilities include:
January 2004 ta ensure they reflect best practce 1. Setting the sirategic direction of the Company by way of long-ierm strategic and annual business plans

rarde the exient r iate. R . X . . X
stardards to the exient appropriate and monitoring management's pedormance against measurable targets.

In early February 2004, the Board confirmed its

) 2. Approving the annual and half year financial statements.
commitment to best practice by adopting the ASX '
CGC's "Principles of Good Corporate Goverrance” 3. Enswing compliance with applicable laws,
8s the basis for its ongoing praciices. 4. Enswring effective compliance and risk management systerns are in place.
5. Enswring appropriate policies and delegations ase in place sufticient to effectively govern the Company.
6. Approving the appointment (and removal if appropriate) of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and

evaluating his/her ongoing performance and remuneration.

7. Approving the appointments (and removal it appropriate) of the Chiet Firanciai Officer (CFO) and the
Company Secreizry.

8. Ensuring that remuneration and performance sirectures, together with an appropriate succession pian for
senior management, are in place.

9. Adopting an entity structure supportive of best practice in corporate governance which is aligned to the
Company's values, straiegies, ethical standards and regulaicry envircoment,

10, Enswiing = sharehoiders are treated equaly.

11, Tarough the Audit Committee, maintainizg close liaison with the Company's auditors.
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The Board has formed the following sianding committees to assist it in carrying out its
responsidilities:

» the Acdit and Risk Committee; and
» the Nomisations and Remuneration Committee.

Certain directors of the Company have yet fo receive formal letters of appointment. I is the
Company's intenticn that all current directors will receive formal letters of appointment to
ensure consistency of form and content. The Company will issue formal letters of
appointment at the time of all future appointments.

The Chairman's role is o provide leadership and to manage the Board so that it operates
efficiently and effectively, and to facilitate interaction between the CEG and the Board.

The Board recognises that the pedormance of #s members and the CED is criticat to the
Compary's success. The Board has committed fo review its perdformance and those of its
members, and to consider the performance reports (through the Nominations and
Rermuneration Committee) of the CEG and the senior executives at least annually.

The Cempany's Censtitution pravides that the Board will have a minimum of three directors
and a maximam af ten.

The Board considers that six directors, all of whom are non-executive at present,
is currenily aporopriate for the effective operation ot the Company.

A majority of the Board are independent directors, free from business or ather relationships
which could interfere with their indeperdent judgement and independent of managemen.
Two direciors have an association with the majorily shareholder, Alinta Limited.

The Corapany requires that, at each Annual Genersd Meeting, one-third of the number ot
direcicrs must refire by rotation. Any directors appointed by the Board since the last
Annual General Meeting must stand-down at the next Annuzl Geseral Meeting. If they ave
eligible they may seek election at this time.

The Board has determined that # should be made up of members with an appropriate mix
of skills and judgements, and that it should review its colective pedormance, and that of
each director, al least annuzally.

The Board appoints cther committees from time-fo-time as required. As & general rule

commitiess of the Board can only make recommendations fo the Board, However, in
certain circumstances, they may be auvthorised to decide an issue on behalf of the Board.

The Nomirations and Remunaration Cemmittee is comprised of three non-executive
directers, Messrs Craven (Chairman), Healey and Shore. The Committee is responsible for

+ Reviewing the composition of the Board a? feast annually io ensure that # maintains an
appropriate mix of expertise and experience;

# Ensuring that there is an annual review of the performance of the Board and faciitating
canying out that review;

# Proposing suifable nominees to the Board sheulc a vacancy occur;

# Recommending to the Board the terms of employment of non-executive directors and
establishing the form of letters of appointment thereof;

» Reviewing the Company's compensation and incentive policies applicable to the CED,
executive management and directors;

» Reviewing the Company's inceriive, superasnuation, refirement, termination and other
benetis policies;

» Reviewing management’s recommeandations for key performance indicators and any
proposed incentive payments for executive management;

# Annually reviewing the performance of the Commitiee and the CEO and recommending
to the Board key performance indicators for the CEQ and sppropriate levels of paymend
of any incentive remuneration; anc

nsuring that & systern for appropriate succession planning is regularly eviewed

The Commitice seeks the advice of experienced external consuitanis where necessasy.

The Company has developed a Code of Caonduct which is applicabie to all directors and
empioyees. 1he Code is based on the premise that alf dealings with employees,
stakeficlders, the commanity and regulaiory authorities are io be conducted faidy, ditigently,
honestly and lawtuly.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 | 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

I3

The Board ras spproved the fofiowing Share Trading Policy for desfing in #he Company's shares. » Conveying o the Board, independent of management, any concerns of the intermal and

, . . : . . external auditors;
Directors and employees are permitted fo trade in Uscomm shares during the year except '

for the three weeks prior to the half and iUl year resuits announcements and two weeks

@

- Reviewing and ensuring the integrity of the finencia information provided fo the Board
prior to a generai meeting of shareholders, including the annual general meeting. and shassholders, and ensuring that the accounting recards are properly maintained in

e ; . . we s o . accordance with staiutory requirements;
Snouid the Company be in receipt of cnreleased price-sensitve information, it may impose yred '

2 frading embargo on its shares for directors and those staff who may be in possession of
suck: information. and reviewing the management letter of the extemnal audiiors relating theretso;

@

- Reviewing and recommending to the Board the half year and annual financial statements

@

In accordance with ASX disclosure cbligations, alt directors are o advise the Company of
zny disclosabie interest immediately. While it is not a legal requirement, empioyees are
zlso bound by this obligation. Al directors and employees cemplete an Annual Bisclosure
of Interest Declaration, which extends to detailing any conflicts of interest.

- Undertaking any investigations relating to financial matters and risks it deems appropriate;

@

- Promidgating an appropriate policy on ethical standards of behaviour and business
conduct;

@

- Reguiary reviewing the externad auditor's performance; and

@

The Board has appointed an Acdit and Risk Commitiee, composed of three non-executive - Ensuring that any non-audit services perfarmed do net compromise the auditor's
directars, Messrs Hall (Chairman), Stewart and Cahil. Messrs Hall and Stewart are also independence,

independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee must be an independent non-

The Chairman of the Commitiee provides a report to the next meeting of the Beard on the
proceadings at each Commiffee meeting.

executive director who is not the Chairman of the Company.

The Board has approved a Committee Charter which includes the foliowing responsibilites:

@

- Reviewing and ensuring the integrity of the reporting process and acoounting policies and Tre Beard has in place comprehensive "Continucus and Market Disclosure Protocols,
maenitoring compliance with current laws, regulations, accounting standards and othes Priicies and Procedures” which govern the refease of disclosable information.

professional reporting standards; The Company Secretary has been nominated as the Continucus Disciosure Officer,

@

« Reviewing the effectiveness of the interal and exiernal audit functions, including

o , , L, Directors are given the cppertunily to comment on and approve all announcements prior to
reviewing and approving the respective sudit pians; ' '

their release wherever possible. Directors receive copies of af releases immediately after

@

- Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the effectiveness of the management they are announced. Where it is decided that information is not to be released, the reasons
information, risk management ard internal controls systems in adeguately and eftectively tfor the non-release are entered into a register.

safeguarding the Company's assets; As part of the internat staf? fraining prograrnme, alt staff receive training in the "Continuous

« Reviewing management's recommendation for the appointment of the external auditor and Market Disclosure Protocals® sc that they can readily identify any matter which may
and recoramending to the Board the appointment of the external acditor and an require disclosure,
appropriate audit tee;

= Regularly receiving and reviewing the reports of the internal auditor and ensuring that the Central to the Board’s responsibiities is the equitable freaiment of the Company's
internzl audit plas is achieved, shareholders.
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The Board is commitied to ensusing that shareholders are fully informed of matters
affecting their Company except where non-disclosure #alis within ASX Listing Rule 3.1
exempiions and may be prejudicial to the Company if released.

The Company has developed a comprehensive web-site which details Hs history, aciivities,
policies and pericrmance.

ir acdition, the Company has provided quarterly profit performance reports to the market
tollowed by detailed ‘open briefing’ announcements.

As part of its review of corporate governance practices conducted in Januay 2004, the
Board adopted the Business Council of Austrafia Chairman’s Panel "Code tor the running
of general meetings of sharehoiders” to ensure that meetings are effectively run and that
sharehclders have adequate time to ask quastions of directors, the CEO and the
Compary's externa auditors at those meetings.

The Company has in piace a comprehensive risk management programme based upon
Standards Australia's AS/NZS 4360: 1988 (Risk Management).

The Audii and Risk Committee receives and reviews regular reporis on the Company's risks
and mitigation thereot. The primary process in place fo identify, essess and manage risk is
the audit process, both internal and external, Each risk identified is weighted in accordance
with AS/NZS 4360 and menitored unti the sisk is mitigated or no longer relevast.

The Board has appointed PricewaterhcuseCoopers (PwC) as intermat audior and KPMG as
exiernal audiior. The PwC and KPMG audit programmes are designed fo ensure maximum
audit coverage and the sharing of information, thereby avoiding dupiication of effort.

The ASX CGC's recommendations require that the CEC and CFC formally sign-off on the
“tinancial reparting risks and associated controls, which underpin the integrity of the entity's
financial reporting®, and that the Company mantains an effective "sound system of risk
management and internal compliance and confrol®. The Company has always mainizined
an efficient formal sign-off process for its financial statements, with senior management,
including the CEQ and CFO providing signed format declarations, that their areas of
responsibility are, to the best of their knowledge, correctly reflected in the statements.
MNotwithstanding this existing process, the Campany wili revievs this process to ensure that
it complies with the ASX recommendations in light of the "Guidance in relation to the
interaction of Principle 7*, provided by the ASX CGC, and released on 19 November 2003

The Board has in place a process for §
Board Committees, the CEC and execidive management.

e review of its performance, the performance of

The 2004 review of corporate governance practices was undertaker to bring the Company's
Corporate Governance Pdiicy into line with the ASX recemmendations. These
enhancements to the Policy include ersuring thet the Board allows time for it to review its
awn performance, the effectiveness and relevance of its Committees, and ensuring that the
composifion of each body is sppropriate given members' sidls, experence and performance.

The review of performance of the CEO is underiaken by the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee, which recommends to the Beoard any remuneration adjusiment
or incentive payrment.

The review of the performance of senior maragement is undertaken by the CEO who
provides a recommendation to the Nominations and Remuneration Commitiee on any
remuneration. adjustments ar incentive payments. After defiberation, the Committes
provides its recemmendation to the Board for decision.

The Beard is developing a formal induction profocel for each new director which will inciude
a formal letter of appointment. The protocol wilt include details on the Campany’s
operation, financial performance, rsk management, corporate governance and relaied
codes of conduct, directors' duties, access to independent professionat advice, access to
the Company Secretary and execuiive managemest and any additional information
considered necessary for informed decision making. Directors and senior manzgement are
expected to achere fo a process of continuing edecation in matters relevant to the
Company's industry, legal and reguiatory envirenment.

The Board is to receive information in a form, time frame and guality that will erable it to
aftectively discharge its dufies.

The Company Secretary is responsibie to the Board on all corporate govemnance matters.
The Company maintains comprehensive remuneration and incentive policies designed to
atiract and refain talented and moiivated directors and employees to enhance iis
performance.

The Beard has sstablished the Nominations and Remuneration Committee {refer Principle
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2 ghove) to assist it address the many issces in this area. The Committee meets at least
twice per year o discuss performance, remuneration, incentives, and other maiters. The
CEO attends Committee meetings by invitation.

Non-executive directors are paid fees in accordance with a determination of the Board but
within & global lmit of $800,000 spproved by sharehoiders in general meeting. The Board
has access to external protessional advice to ensure the leve! of fees payable to non-
execciive direciors is in keeping with similarly sized listed companies. The remuneration of
the non-executive Chairman was determined after accessing external professional advice.
Details of directars' remureration appear in this Annual Report {Financiai Repor? section).

Directors are not entiled to any incentive payment or terraination. benefit (other than
accrued eamings and statutory seperannuation contributions).

Directors may elect fo sacrifice some or all of their fees info the Company’s shares under
the Deterred Srare Plan. Shares are acquired on market and heid by a trustee for up to 10
years, or eariier shouid the director elect fo unrestrict the shares or redire from the Board.

Senior managers of the Company receive a tixed salary plus an "at risk® cormponent, whick
is inked to personal and Company performances. The "at sisk” component is comprised of
a2 short-term incentive payment and a long-term incentive with the ability to participate in
the Company's Option and Performance Rights Plan. The Board has sccess to, and
annually consults, external professional advice on senior management's remuneration and
incentive levels. The Nomination and Remuneration Commiitee considers the
recomrmendation of the CEQ and the externat advice before making a recommendation to
the Board on any adjustments or incentive payments.

The Campany maintains three staff share pians and an Option and Perdformance Rights
Plan. Details of the jevels of participation and Rules of the Plans appear in the Financial
Report section of this Annual Report

Senior managers of the Company have entered info senvice contracts governing their terms

of employment and termination payments. The services contract for the CEO is
comparable to those for senior managers and reflects the senior nature ot his rofe.
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Tre Board has maintained a Cade of Conduct which requires a high fevel of ethic
behaviour for all cirectors and employees of the Company.

Since the selease of the ASX CGC's Principles, the Code of Conduci has been further
enhanced to ensure compliance with the CGC's recommendations. The Code now provides
tor & mechanism for employees to report breaches of the Code without fear of retribution.
A commitiee of senior managers has been tormed to deal with breaches, monitor
compliance and o report fo the Board.



FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Kntes

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2003 2002

§'a60 $000 §060 $000

Revenue fram ordinary activities
Expenses from ardinary activities
Barrawing costs axpanse

Profit from urdinary activities before related
ingome tax expense

incame fax {expense} / bensfit

Profit from ordinary activities after related
income tax expense

Net increasa/{decrease) in retained prafits an
the initial adeption of revised AASB 1028

Tetal revenue, expenses angd valuation
adjustments attributable tr members of
Hecomm Limited recagnised directly in equity

Tetal changes in equity afiridable o members
of Hecemm Limited other than thase resulting
fram iransactions with owners as awaers

Basic earnings per share

Bituted earnings per share

kT
ki

44738
{51.546)
(2373

1204
{1,562}
{2.266)

(9,319
3846

8,196
(2.5

{5473

‘78 (1.1

The ahove statements of financial performance should be read in cenjunction with the accompanying nofes.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2003

Consalidated Pareat enlity {ansolidated Parent entity
2003 2002 2063 2002 2603 62 2603 2002
fintes 5000 $o0o 5006 $o0c Notes S0 $o08 Soen $000

Current assels Carrend liabilities

fash assety B.24 Payabiss 14,24

Receivables 124 interast hearing liabilities 1524

Bther B Pravisions 16
feferred revenue 17

Tatal current assets 13,878

Total current lizhilities
Non-zurrent assets

Receivables 824 1,18 158028 Non-curzrent lizhilities

fther financial assats ¥ - 7 interest hearing liabilities 19,24
Property, plant and equipment hi 148,588 - Pravisions 19
Deferred tax assels ¢ 6,355 i Deferred revenus i
Intarkgble assets 13 456 487

Total non-current Habilities

Tatal non-current assets 158,232

155,548 Tetal liabilities

Tatal assets 111526 158,652
Net agsets
Enuily
Contributed equity # B 293 213
Retained profits/{accumulated lossas) 22 (178,801} {167,561}
Total equity 23 1MN96 TE3N2  ISI0B8 124852

The ahove statements of financial position should be read in comjunction with the sccompanying notes.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Cansolidated Parent entity Cansofirated Parent entity
2603 200 2003 2002 2003 2082 2003 2002

lintas §o00 $o00 5000 $o00 Nates $uon §000 S §o00

Cash fiows from aperating activities
Receipts from customers
{inchusive of goods and serviees fax)

Cash flows from fimanging actividies
Reesipts from subordinated toan - related party
Adianee tn refated party
Praceeds from issue of shares and options
finance lease payments
Het cash inflow (outflow} from financing
activities

15,300
(17.984)

52,868

Payments ta suppliers and emplpyees
{inchusive of goods and serviees fax)

{45,388}

{1,984)
Net 68T setflemant

interest raceived

Barrawing casts paid

incame taxes {paid)frefunded

Het increase (decrease) in cash held
{lash at the beginning of the financial year

{lash at the end of the financial year &
Ket cash inflow {putflaw) from
eperating achivities 3
Cash flows from investing activities financing anangements 18
Procesds fram sale of business and investments 1450 ton-cash financing and investing activities 3

{21,341
34

Payments far property, plant and equipment

Pracaeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Ket cash inflow {outflaw) from _ :
investing activities i3l (985D - 1450

The abave statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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{#ii} Asset sajes

e . - - o o . The gross proceeds on disposa; of assets is brought to account at the date when contral
The significant accounting poficies which have beer adopied in the preparation of ; o o
: . s ' passes to the purchaser, usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed.
these financial statements are: '

{iv} Interest income

Interest income is recognised as # accrues faking into account the eftective yield an

the financial asset.

{a) Basis of accounting
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronccncements of the Austrafian
Accouniing Standards Board (AASB), Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views {v} Other revenue
and the Corporations Act 2001, Other operating revenue is broughi fo account as 4 is earned and is recognised when

. . e ; . the goods and services are provided.
It has been prepared in accordance with the hisicrical cost convention and does not d P

fzke into accouni changes in either the general purchasing power of the dollar or in (d) Borrowing costs
the prices of specific assets. Unless othenwise stated, the accounting policies adopted Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating fo
are consistent with those of the previous year. borrowings and amortisation of anciflary costs incurred in connection with

. e arrangemenis of borrowings, including trade crediors and finance lease charges.
{b) Principles of consolidation g § d 9ss

The consoiidated financial statemenis incorporate the asseis and fiabfities of all Anciliary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are
entities controlled by Uscomm Limited {'Company’ or 'Parent entity”) as at 33 capitalised and amortised aver the e of the borrowings. Borrowing costs are
December 2003 and the resuits of ali controlled entiies tor the year then ended. recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Uscomm Limited and its contrafed entities together are referred to in this financial .
_ , ) , . e (&) Taxation

report as the consolidated entity. The effecis ot all transactions between entities in the

consolidated enlity are eliminated in fuil. {i} Income fax

. : s : . . . o Tax effect accouniing procedures are fofowed whereby the income tax expense in the

Where control of an entity is cbiained during a financial yeas, iis resuits are inciuded in . ; ; . 1 . Lo

; v , , , ; i staterments of financial periormance is matched with the accounting profit afier

the consclidated statement of financial performance from the date on which controd

; ) . ) ) : A aliowing for permanent differences. The future tax benefit relating fo tax losses is not
commences. Where contro! of an entity ceases during a tinancial yvear its resulis aze '

, . , ) L . , . carrded forward as an assef unless the benefit is viruaily cerain of realisation. Income

included for that part of the year during which control existed. o s . . . ; :

tax on cumulative timing differences is set aside to the deferred income tax ar the

{¢) Revenue recognition tfuture income tax benefit accounts at the sates which are expected fo apply when
Sales revenus comprises revenue eamed {net of retums, discounts, aliowances and thase timing differences reverse. Refer note 3.

taxes paid) from the provision of services and products. Revenue is recognised for the

. . - ‘s Fuiure income tax benefits relating to timing differences are not brought to account
major business activities as foilows:

uniess reglisation of the asset is assured beyond reasonable doubt.
(i} Telecommunications connection fees

. ) ) ) . N (it} Capital gains fax
Revenue is recagnised cnce the customer is connected to the network, In instances where

Capital gains tax is brought to account in the sistement of financial performance in the

substanfial connection fees are received in advance of senvices provided, the revenue o T .
i periad in which the assat is sold.

relating to this connection fee is capped at 2G% of the tolal contract value. The remaining
contract vaiue is deferred and recognised over the pericd the service ie provided. ) Cash

. L . For purposes of the Statements ot Cash Fiows, cash includes deposits st call which
i} Telecommunications service fees " . o L
are readify convertible to cash an hand and are subject fo an insignificant risk of

Revenue derved from service fees received for transmission on the network is ! . : P .
changes in velue, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

recognised i the pericd the service is provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W

)

€}

Receivables
The coliectability of debis is assessed, and a provision is raised, based on a specific
review of the amounts ouistanding at balance date.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets

The recoverable amount of son-current assets is the net amoust expecied to be
recovered through the cash infiows and cutfiows arising from their continced use and
subsequent disposal. The recoverable amount s determined using net cash Hows
discounted using an appropriate discount rate.

The carrying amount of non-current assets vakied using the cost basis are reviewed to
datermine whether they are in excess ot their recoverable amount at balance date.

Where the camrying amount of a non-current asset is greater than its recoverable
amourt, the asse! is written down to its recoverable amount. Where net cash inflows
are derived from a group of assets working together, recoverable amount is
determined on the basis of the refevant group of assets. The decrement in the
carrying amount is recognised as an expense in net profit or loss in the reporting
pericd in which the recoverable ameount write-down occurs,

Iz 2001 the Parent entity undertook an asset carying value review of inter-company
invesiments and receivables. Consequently, a provision for diminution of investment in
subsidiaries of approximaely $477 million and & provision for non-recovery of inter-
company loens of approximately $174 milicn were recorded in the parent entity's
books. These provisions align the value of the net assets of the Parent entity with the
net assets of the consolidated entity. The creation of these provisions in the Parent
entity does not affect the results or net assets of the consclidated entity as the
orovisions are efiminated on consolidation.

Investments

lrteresis in fisted and urnlisted securities, other than conirolled entities and associates
in the consclidated financial statements, are brought to account at cost and dividend
income is recognised in the Statements of Financial Performance when receivabie.
Controfled entities and associates are accounted for in the conscolidated financial
sigtements as set out in note 1(b}.
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(k)

)

Property, plant and equipment
The cost of plant and equipment constructed by the entity inciudes the cost of materials
and direct iabour and an appropriste proporion of fived and varisble overheads.

Depreciation of property, piant and eguipment

Depreciation: is calcuiated on a straight-fine basis to write oft the net cost or revalued
amount of each item of property, plant and eguipment (excluding land) over its
expected useful fife to the consolidated entify. Estimates of remaining useful ives are
made on & regular basis for ali asseis, with annual reassessments for major Zems.
The expected usetdl lves are as follows:

Category Useful life Depreciation basis
» fibre optic cable and associated

infrastructure 30 years
» Fibre optic netwerk equipment ¥ years

» Other plant and equipment 3 to t0 years

Where #tems of plant and equipment have separately identifiabie components which
are subject to regular repiacement, those componenis are assigned useiul lives
distinct from the item of plant and equipment to which they relate.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular plast are capitalised and depreciated
on the same basis as the plant io which they relate.

Leased assets

Leases under which the Company or its controlled entities assume substantially alt the
risks and benefits of ownership are classified as tinance leases. Other leases are
ciassified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised. A fease asset and a lease liakility equal to the presend
vaile of the minimum lease payments are recerded at the inception of the lease,
Lease kebilities are recuced by repayments of principal. The interest components of
the iease payments are expensed. Contingent rentais are expensed as incurmed.
Operating leases

Fayments made under cperating leases are expensed on a siraight-line basis over the



term of the lease, except where an atermative basis is more representative of the
patters of benefits 1o be derived from the leased property.

{m} Intangible assets and expenditure carried forward

{n)

(o)

{1} Goodwilf

Where an entity or operation is acouired, the iden#iable net assets acquired are measwred
at fair vaive. The excess of the fair value of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
iden#iable net assets acquired, including any #ability for restructuring costs, is brought o
account as goodwill and amarised an a siraighi-line basis over 20 years, being the period
during which the benefits are expectad to arise.

(i) Patents and trademarks
Significant costs associated with patents and trademarks are deferred and amortised on
a straight-ne basis over the periods of their expected benefit, which is 20 years.

Trade and other creditors

These amounts represent liabilifies for gocds and senvices provided to the Company
prior fo the end of the fnancial year and which are uspaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognitiorn.

Employee benefits

{i} Wages, safaries and annual leave

Liabitities for employee exdittements to wages, salaries and annual leave are
recognised, and are measured, as the amount unpaid at the repoding date at
current pay rates in respect of employees’ sendces up to that date.

(i} Long service leave

A ligbility for long senvice leave is recognised, and is measured, as the present value
af expected fuiure payments fo be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employee depariures and periods of service. Expecied future
payments are discounted using interest rates on national government guaranteed
securities with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outfiows.

)

w

{1i{} Superannuation

The consolidated entity primarily conéributes o an industry superannuation fund in respect
of its permanest employees and direct-hired casusl employees. The consolidated estity
and any employee contributions are based on various percentages of their gross
saiaries. Al members of the fund become entitied to a benefit on termination. The
tfund provides both defined benefits and accumulation bensfits.

Contributions to defined beneft superannustion pians maintained by the consalidated
entity are expensed in the year they are paid or become payable. No amount is
recognised in the accounts in respect of the net surplus of these pians. Refer note 30,

{iv} Employee share and opfion ownership schemes

Certain employees are entifled o participate in share and option ownership schemes,
Interest free loans are provided to assist in the purchase of Company shares at the
market values applicable at the time of purchase. Neo remuneration expense is
recognised in respect of employee options issued. Amounts cutstanding on emplayes
share oans are inckided in other non-current receivables. Refer note 30,

{v} Commissions

Certain employees are entifled o sales commissions. Commissions payable to these
employees are paid on a guarterly basis and inciude components calcuiated on new
contracts signed and on amounts billed to existing customers. In relation fo new
contracts, a component of commissions is payable based cn the tofal contract value.
This component is deferred until the cusfomer is connected to the netwaork.
Commissions calculated on amounis bilied, are expensed in the period in which
revenue is eamed, in ne with the revenue recognition pelicy. Refer note 1(c).

Interest bearing tiabilities

Loans &re recognised whes issued at the amount of the net proceeds received.
Interest is recognised as an expense on a straight-fine accruals basis, Refer note 18,
Contributed equity

Crdinary share capital is recorded st consideration received. The cosis of issuing
securities are charged against the share capital. Ordinary share capital bears no special
terms or conditions affecting income or capital extitlernents of the shareholders.
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{r)

(s}

Changes in accounting policy

The consolidated entity has applied the revised AASB 1028 "Employee Benefiis” for
the first time from ¥ January 2003, The liability for wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave is now calcuizted using the remuneration rates the Company expects fo
pay as at esch reperting date, not wage and salary rates current at reporting date. The
adjustment to the consclidated tirancial report as at 1 January 2003 as a result of this
chasge is an $85,000 decrease in opening retained profis.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 88/0100, issued by the
Austraiian Securites ard Invesiments Commission, refating to the 'rounding off' of
armounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial report have been rounded off
in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain
cases, to the nearest dollar,

Business segments
The consofideted entity operates in the felecommunications industry as a provider of
telecommunications daia and broacdband services.

Geoyraphical segments
The consclidsted entity ocperaies in Australia.,
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Kotes

Revenue fram cperaling activities
Gonnectian feas
Service fees

Revenue fram suiside the operating activities
interest from wholly owned entities

interest from other entities

Bad defis recavered

Pracaeds fram sale of plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investmants

Revenue from nrdinary activifies

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2603 2002

§'a60 $000 §060 $000

5,884
37345

63312 4478 1437 1200




{a) Met (pains} and expenses

Prafit / (loss) fram ordinary activities befors income
tax expense inclutes the following specific net gains

and expenses:

Ket (gains) / losses

Net {gains) / losses an dispasal
investments
Praperty, plant and squipment

(b} Expenses

Expenses from mrdinary activities
Employes benefils expense
Depreciation and amorlisation expenses
Hetwark services
Administration and secupancy
Management fees
Earrying amount of non-eurrent assets
{ither expenses frarm ardinary activities

Expenses from ordinary achivities

(c) Dther items
Depreciation
Plant and equipment

Total depreciation

Amartisation

Plant and egquipment under finance leases

Patents and trademarks

Total amortisation

{ansolidated Parent entity

2002 2003 2002

$o00 §060 $000

Naotes

{456}
11,264 13
10,578 bij
12,876 -
6,282 522

a8
1237
1,688

i # 7

TR 7

{ither charges against assets
Bad and douhtful debis - frade debtors

Total ather charges against assets

Borrowing casts
Borrawing casts

Total borrawing casts
Bet loss on investmenis and ather assels

{ther provisions
Employee entitements

Total ather provisions

Renial expense relating 1o operating leases
Winimum lease payments

Total rental expense relating o operating leases
{d) individually significant items

Revenue
Luzent contract settlement revenue
Safe of invesiment in People Telecom
Sale of Perth network

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003
$'600

ofidsl 2

2002 2003 2002
§ood $'edo g0

e

£483
1,459

- A
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Income {ax expense

liatas

Exponses
Lags an loan share plan
Gosts refating to change of control event
Lucent contract seftiement costs
Peopte Telecom investment - carrying value
Lease assigrment costs
Perth netwark cosls

Taxation
Logs on Joan share plan
Gosts refating to change of control svent
Perth netwark costs
Lucent contract settiement
Lease assignment costs
Priar year tax losses

Tutal of individualy significant itams

*ANMUAL REPGRT 2003

Gonsalidated
2002
NI

2003
5000

1,048

Parent enlity {ansolidated Parent entity
2063 2002 2603 2002 2003 2002
506 $o0c Notes $'aen $o08 Soen $o08

(a) The income tax expense for the financial year

ditfers from the amaunt caleutated on the result

The differences are recaneciled as follows:

Profit from ordinary activities bhefore incame tax expense R B,196
tncome fax caloulated @ 3096 (2002 - 30%%) {2,746) 2459
{0verd/unter peovision from prine year {481} -
fither tax adjustments % B
Tax losses brought to acenunt {458}

Adjustment for infer-company loan forgiveness-

Tax henefit on utilisation of tax losses

incame tax expense / {henefit) (3,888}

Tax losses

{ensofidated Parent entity
2603 62 2603 2002
Notes $'aan $o08 $oan $o60

A

{472

{13609

(k) Part of the future income tax benefit shows in
nate 12 is atiributable to tax fsses. The directors
estimate that that the potential future income tax
benefit at 31 Becember 2003 in respect of tax
losses not braught fa account is

This benefit for tax losses will only be ebiained if:

18,588

(i} the entity derives fubure assessable income of 2 nature and of an amount sufficient 1o enable the benefit fram

the deductions for the fosses 1o be reafised, or

(i} the losses are transferred to an eligible entity in the censolidaled entity, and
(iii} the entity contireses to comply with the conditians for deductibility imposed by tax legishation, and
(iv) no chatgas in tax leyiskation adversely affeet the entity in realising the henefit from the deductions for the Jnsses.



s 2 ennsequence of the substantive enactment of the Tax Conselidation {egistation, and singe the tax conselidated
yriug withist the consofidated entity had aet formally determined nor natified the Australian Tax Office at the date of
signing this repart of the implementatian date for tax consofidation, the consofidated entity centinues tn apply HIG 39
Effert of Proposed Tax Cansolidation Legislation an Defarred Tax Balances. There was no impact an the Campany's or
conselidated entity's future income tax henefit as a result of applying UIG 39 as at 31 Ceeember 203,

{onsolidated
2603 i1
Notes $060 $ooe

Parent eatity
2003 2002
Soen $o08

Gash at hank 628

{ansolidated
2603 2102
Notes $060 o008

Parent entity
2003 2002
Soan $o08

o

Trade debiars 9008
Less: Provision for deubtful dehis {447}
fiher debitars

Receivable fram controfiing enlity
Receivable fram related parties
Bands and services fax {BST) receivabie

Refer 1o note § for the non-current portion of receivables.

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003 2082 2003 2002
§o0n S0 §o0n

Nates $'600

Prapayments
{etarred expenses
Aeerued revenue

1496
2
1,008

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003 2082 2003 2002

Nates $uon §000 S §o00
fither delrtors . -
Receivahle from wholly owned entities 329, 7H
Less: provision for doutitful receivables (173,738)

155,983

{ther receivables - Loan Share Plan 348
Less; provision for Ao recavery of Loan Share Plan {2.368)
1,118

Receivable from other controlied entities Ealid
2 118 158,028

Further information relating ta loans to refated parfies and directars is set out in note 31,
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liatas

Shares in controfled entities - at onst

Shares in contrelled enfities

Shares in controlled entities have been written down to their assessed recoverable amaunt, being the direrters’ valuation
at 31 Bacember 2001.

3

Gonsalidated
2002
NI

2003
5000

Parent enlity
2063 2002
$o0

5008

liatas

Plant and equipment

Plant and squipment at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Pant and squipmant under finance lease
Less: agcumutated amarfisation

Plant and equipment in the course of canstrustion

Total plant and equipment at net boek value

ANMUAL REPORT 2003

Gonsalidated

2003
5000

2002
000

Parent enlity
2063 2002
08 $7000

Resencifiatisns
Revoncifiations of the carying amounts of each class of preperty, plant and eguipment at the beginning and end of the
rutrent and previous financial year mre set aut below:

{n course of  Plant and
construction  eguipment

Leased plant
and equipmeni  Total

liotes o o 000 $on0
Canselidated
Gareying amount at 1 January 2003 16,855 131,145 668 148,688
Additians 1,551 32,128 - 43689
Dispasats (A543} {4,580 - {5,130}
Depreciation/amartisation expense de {184} {13,508} {188} {13.478)

Transfers taf{frnm) assets in the course

of ganstruction {18,585} 15,585 . .

Garrying amount 2t 31 December 2003 8.1 165,082 02 wim

{ansolidated Parent ertity
2603 2062 2603 2002
Notes $'060 $ooe $oan bilt]

3,688
3,355

Future income tax benefits - tax lesses
Futire income tax benafils - timing differances

il




{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2003 2002
Nres Soen $o08 Soen $o08

Cansofirated
2003 002
Nates $'600 go0n

549
82}

529
{63)

Patents, frademarks and lcences. at east
Less: acoumulated amarlisation

Employee entitoments
{ither provisians

m
630

Parent entity
2003
S0

2002
g0

{onsolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2003 2002

Notes §o00 $o00 Y ItH] $000

Cansfidated
2003 2082
faag

Nates $'600

11,488
358
818

Trade crediors
Payatile to contraliing entity
Bands and services fax {(BST) payahle

12462

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2003 2002

Notes §o00 $o00 Y ItH] $000

Hnsecured

Lease Hahility fnote 20 24 245

Finance lease Hiab#itiy
The implicit interest rate on the finance lease is 8%,

Unsesured
{(eferred revenue

3388

Parant entity
2003
S0

2002
g0

Consolidated
2003 2082
Notes so0 $000
Secarsd
{pase Habifity Vil
Unsecured

{nsecurad - payable to controlling entity

Total non-current interest bearing Hahilitiss

Parent entity

2003
S0
7

2002
g0

further information relating fo foans fram related parties is set out in note 31
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fin 23 Judy 2003, the Subardinated Loan Facifity previously with United Energy Limited (HEL) was transferred o Alinta
Finanice Pty Lid {Afinta Finance). The value of thic facility is $60 millien and as at 31 December 2003 $54 milfion
{2002: $35.0 millien} fad been drawn dawn. Interest acerues daily on the sutstanding principat at 2 fixed rate of 8%
per annum. In respeet of the first ixterest perind, the period is from the first draw down under the faciity to 30 June
2002, Subsequent interest periods wilt be six calendar months ending 30 June and 31 December respectively. i any
payment due date falls on 2 nen-business day it will be made an the naxt business day and interest will be adjusted
asceordingly. The facility can be drawn upon unt 28 June 2006 and repayment is due an or before 28 June 2007 In the
event the Gompany has insufficient nperating cash flow to meet the interest repayment on its due date, Alinta Finance
may at its discrefian defer payment of 2l or part of the interest dus to 2 subseguent interest due date. Interest will
continue to accrie on any amount of ivterest so deferred.

On 24 July 203, the $20 millian Bank Buarantes Facility previously provided tiy DEL was transferred to Afinta Finanee
to be utilised as required. Minta Finance agreed te provide the bank offering the faciity 2 corvesponding financial
indemnity. Afintz Finance will reduce the level of funding available urder its $80 million faciity to the extent the Bank
Guarantes Faciity s drawn upnre. As at 31 December 2003, Uecomm had provided guarantees tatalling $4.3 milfion,
noete of which had been drawn upon.

Financing arrangemants

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2603 2002
Notes $'aen $o08 Soen $o08

13

Pravisiges ~ long service leave

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2603 2002
Notes $'aen $o08 Soen $o08

Gonsalidated Parent enlity
2003 2002 2063 2002
fintes L1151 NI 506 $o0c

Unrestricted access was ayvailable at balance date to
the foliowing fines of cradit;

Credit standby arrangements

Total faciities
Alinta Tinance Pty Lid Subordinated Loan Facility

Uised at balance date
Alinta Tinance Pty Lid Subordinated Loan Facility

Unused at hatance date
Hlinta Finance Pty Ltd Suboedinated Loan Facility 45,000 43,000
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Ungegured

Deferred revenue 4,458




Parent entity Parent antity
2003 2002 2003 2002
Mntes Shares  Shares Soen $o08

0 505,078,800 202213

issued and paid up capital

(a)} Movements in erdinary share capital

Date Details Kumber af shares Issue price $
112003 {ipening halanecs 53,079, 800 292 112 595
20-01-2003 issue of emplayes bonus shares 333300 B -
1-8-Z003 Exareise of executive share aptians 180,800 on 18,800
1-8-2003 Exercise af executive share optisns 300,800 $0.13 39000
1-8-Z003 Exareise of executive share aptians 1,150,000 o 195,500
1-8-2003 Exercise of executive share aptians 500,080 on 55,100
1-8-Z003 Exareise of executive share aptians 160,000 o 7000
8-8-2003 Exercise af executive share optisns 166,800 fow 7000
12-8-2003 Exareise of executive share aptians 450,800 o 78500
14-8-2003 Exareise of executive share aptians 166,000 $013 13000
10-8-2003 Exareise of executive share aptians 450,800 4013 58500
10-8-2003 Exareise of executive share aptigns 300000 4013 30000
10-8-2003 Exereise of executive share aptions 260,000 o 34000
31-12-2003 Elasing Balance 50,243 1 282,771 285

{b} Ordinary shares
Brdinary shares entille the holder to participate in dividends and the proceads on winding up of the Company in

propartion fa the number af and amourts paid on the shares held. Refer fo note 16,

fn 2 shaw of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at @ maeting in person ar by praxy, is entiied tn one vote,
and upan 2 pell each share is entitled to ang vote,

{z} Optians

At the time af the initial public affering, senior executives and twa directors sefected by the Beard were offered aptions
ta subiscribie for shares under the employee aption plan. During the year 053,775 options (2002: 4,870.000) were
granted o senfor executives and managers. As at balance date 8,566,375 options (2002: 5.442,500) were outstanding
which had heen issued af no cost (2002: ne cost)

Exereise conditions for sptions grated prior ta 2001

The options are exercisable in three franches. 33%:% are exerciseble commencing the secand year from the date of
grant, & further 33%: % from the third vear fram the date of grant and the finat 33'%% from the fourth year from the
date of grant. The last date of exercise of any option is the fifth anniversary from the date of grant and the exercise
price is $2.20 with 2 hurdle price of $3.30.

Exeroise conditions for optivns granted between Oeloher 2001 and April 2003
Strike price hurdias are satisfied:

Strike Price Hurdle:

Share price en ASX an day of exercise Number of aptiens capable af being exercised

{ireater than or equal to $0.30
{ireater than or equal to $0.50
{ireater than or equal tn §100
{ireater than or equal ty $2.00

25% of options granted
25% of options granted
25% of plions granted
28% of options granted

Exercise conditions for eptions granted in 2003

Exercise of the options i3 subiect to satisfaction of a performance hurdle. For share aptions issusd in 2003, the
performanee hurdle is the extent to which the Uecomm share price exteeds the eercise price of the oplions in
accardance with the fallowing table:
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Performance Hurdle Percentage of 2603 Bplion

allocatisn exercisable

Share price at any time during the performance peried does not excesd
exercise price of 2003 Options Offer by 25% 84

Share price at any time during the performance period sxcesds exercise
price of 2003 Options Offer by at least 25% but nat 50% or more 284

Share price at any time during the performance period exceeds exereise price
of 2003 Optioes Difer by at teast B0% but not 75% or mare il

Share price at any time during the performance periad exceeds exercise price of
2003 Optians Offer by at least 75% but not 1002 or more 5%

Share price a8t any time during the performance periad exceeds exercise price of
2003 Optians Gffer by at least 4 i

Notwithstanding the options satisfying the perfarmanes hurdles sef out abeve, the propertion of the iofal optien
alfacation under the 2003 Options Offer that can be exercised wilt depend on the employee’s continued employment with
& Hepomm Group Gompany in 2ceordance with the table below,

Empleyed beyond Percantage of 2003 option
allogatian execisable

30 April 2005 5gs

30 Apnl 2006 5%

AW of the share price performance hurdles for the nptions issued in 2003 were achieved during 2003,
(d} Perfarmance Rights
During the year 3004 200 (2002 nil) perfarmanee rights were granted. As 2t batance date 3.994.200 (002: ni) were nutstanding.

Far the perfarmance rights issued in Apnl 2003, the performance hurdle is the extent to whish Uscomm's EBITDA mests
the target set by the Board. The parformance righis issued in Seplember 2003 were issued 25 2 form of retention banus
for 2 member of key staff. For the performance rights issued in September 2003, the hurdle is the continued
emptoyment with Uecemm for 15 menths, in that 50% of the Rights offered wilf be able to be accessed in September
2004 with the remaining 50% being able to be actessed in March 2085,
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{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2603 2002
Notes $'aen $o08 Soen $o08

Retained profits/{accumulaterd Insses) at the beginning

of the financial year {13478

Net profit attributabile to members of Yecomm Limited {5,873)

Adjustment resulting from adoption of revised
acenunting standard AASE 1028 “Employes Benefits”

(178,901 (167561)

{onsolidated Parent ertity
2603 62 2603 2002

Notes a0 $000 Y ItH] $000

Tolat equity 2t the beginning of the financial year 116,783 118,785

Total changes in equity recogeised in the statement

of financiat performance {5473} 5864

Transactions with owners as owners:
Contributions of equity, net of fransaction costs #

Total equity at the end of the financiat year 352 124,852



(a) Eredit risk expasures
The eredit fisk on financial assets of the consalidated entity which have been recognised on the Statements of Financial
Pasitian, nther than investmenis in shares, is generally the carrying amaount, net of any provisions far deubtful debis,

Gradit risk expasures represent the extent of credit related losses that the consolidated entity may bie suliject tn an
amaunis 1o Be exchanged under the derivatives or fa be reeeived from financial assefs. The constfidated entily, while
exposad ta credit related losses in the svent of non-perfarmance by counterparties fo financial instruments, daes not
expeet any counterparties to fail tn meet thelr oidigations given their high evedit ratings.

The eonselidated entity's expasuras to cradit risk are as indigated by the carrying amaunts of its financial assets.
The consalidated snlity does nat have 2 significant exposure to any individual counterparties, and there are na
significant groupings of counterparties that would represent 3 concentration of credit risk.

(b3 Interest rate risk expasures
The eonsolidated entity is exposed fo interest rate risk through primary financial assets and Habifities. The foflowing
table swmarises inferest rate risk far the consafidated entity, together with effective interest rafes as at balance date.

Exposures arise predaminantly from assels and Habilities baaring variable inferest rates as the consofidated entity
intends tn hold fixed rate assefs and Habilities to maturity,

Fixed interest maturing in:

Weighted average Floating 1yearor Over 1105  Nan interest

Fixed interest maturing in:

Weighted average Floating 1yearar Over 1185  Non interest

interest rate inderest rale  less years bearing Total
20683 Kotes % $'o0g Soen $'oo0 $'o0e $'800
Financial assels
Gash B 508 1,189 - . - 1,140
Receivalies 73 - . . 15,308 15,308
1,180 . . 15308 15498
Financial lizhilities
Trade and other creditrs - . . 14155 14153
Lease liahilities 15,18 B0 - 18 . - 188
Alinta Tinance Ply Utd
Subordinated Loan Faclity 18 B0 - . 5000 - B4
- 18 5000 14153 68348
Net financial assets (Habilities) 1,180 {196) (54,600) 1,155 (51851}

interest rate  interest rate  less years bearing Total
2092 Nirdes % L1151 $'090 L1151 $oan L1151
Financial assets
{lash B 425 528 - . - 824
Receivahles 74 . - . g63t  GB3
57 - - gh3t 19,280
Tinaneial abifities
trade and other crediters 14 - - - 12m W
Lpase Habifities 15,16 800 - - 441 - 441
Lkiited Energy Himited
Subgrdinated Laan Facility 18 800 . - 35,668 - 35000
- - 35,441 1207 41558
fiet finaneial assets ffiabilities) 528 - {35,441} {2488} (37.298)

Cansnfidated Parant entity
2003 2002 2003 2002
Nates $ $ § $

Inzome paid of peyalle, ar otherwise made availabie,
te directors by entities in the consolidated entity and
related parties in connsction with the management
of affairs of the Uecomm or its controlied entities *

{Hrectors’ fees/remuneration 365,17 365,787

* Excluding executives of Uecomm wha are only directars of whally-pwned Australian contralled enfities,

The amaunts disclosed for remuneration of direstors include the assessed fair values at the dale they were granted, of
aptiens granted to directaes durig the years ended 31 December 2002 and 31 Decernber 2003, Fair values have been
assessed using an oplion pricing model. Factors taken inte account by this medel include the exercise price, the term of
the optien, the sutrent price and expected price volalifity of the underlying share, the expected dividend yisld and the
risk-free interest rate of the term of the option. Mo expense relating ta the granting of the eptions was recorded in the
Statements af Financial Performance.
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Granted Butstanding
The mumber of Uecomm directors whose tolal income from the parent entity or related parfies was within the specified Oplions 5,598 401 164840
bands are as follows: Performance Rights 3441 508 3441 696
L L 2603 2002
g - 4,388 - i The amuounts disclased for remuneretion of executive officers in this note inelude the assessed fair values at the date
10000 < 18298 3 1 they were granted of aptions granted to executive officers during the years ended 31 Decernber 2003, 2002 and 2001
PiskiR); - 78988 2 . Fair vatuas have been assessed using an optian pricing model. Factars taken into account by this model inshude the
30,068 - 34208 . 1 Bxercise price, the term af the option, the current price and expected price valatiffty of the underlying share, the
40168 < 48308 . 1 expected dividend yield and the risk-frea interest rate for the term of the option. No axpense relating ta the granting of
50,68 < 54398 3 3 uptians was recarded in the Statements of Financial Performance,
80,000 - B%anY - -
110,668 - HB388 - 1
1406808 - 1489%% 1 -

Fegs payable to directars whe were alse smployees of assaciated companies were paid to the assoeiated companies
tather than {g these dirsetars.

Gonsalidated Parent enlity
2003 2002 2083 2002
liatas L $ $ §

Remuriaration received, or due and receivable, from
sntities in the consolidated antity and related parties by
Austrafian based executive officers {eluding directors)
whose remuneration was af least $100 000;

Executive officers af Hecamm

fintions and performance rights are granted to exeeutive officers under the Usenmm Option and Performance Rights
Plan, details of which are set out in notes 21 and 30, A summary of the nurmbers of aptiens and performance rights
granted to Austrafian hased exseutive officers {with income of at least $100,000) during the year ended 31 Dacember
2003 is set out belew. 7585301 optians and 3441696 performance rights were nutstanding at 31 December 2003
{2002; 2,550.000 options and parformance rights).
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The numbers of Australian based executive efficers {including directors) whose remuneration from entities in the
ronsalidated entity and related parties was within the spacified hands are as follows:

Exzeutive officers of the
patent entity

Executive officers of the
ronsalidated entity

§ $ 2083 2002 2003 il 154
Wi - 08,498 - 3 . .
HO,808 - 118,498 4 2 . .
34121161 B 124,494 2 3 . .
136,608 - 13889 2 z - -
wesm - 144,494 3 1 . .
HE000 - 175,494 - 1 . .
180,088 - 18889 - 1 . .
180,088 - e 1 1 . .
Mogee - 0899 3 - . .
oo - 718,498 2 2 . .
238000 - 38898 - 1 . .
40008 - 248898 2 1 - -
56000 - 25899 - 1 . .
fepoe - 274,494 1 - . .
oo - 318,998 1 - . .
400008 - 408898 1 - - -
47joee - 428998 - 1 . .
speg - 448998 - 1 . .
13170 B : 4 1 - . .

The exegutive officers’ remuneration comprises amourts paid and payable to executive officers domiciled in Australia,
tirectly and indirecty, by the consefidated entity or any refated party in connaction with the management of the affairs
of Uecomm or the consalidated entity, whather as executive officers or otherwise. Included in executive remuneration
for executives employed by Hecomm are tarmination payments.

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003 2002 2003 2002
Netes $ $ § $

Remuneration for audit o7 review of finaneial reporis

of the parent entity ar any entity in the ecanamic entity; 88,000 ¢ 80,000

Remuneration for ather servicas
{ither audit servicss

Total remungration

{etaits and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are sef out betow. The directars are of the opinien
that provisions are not required in tespect of these matters, as it is nat probable that a fulure sacrifive of econamic
hensfits will he required or the amount is aot capable of reliable measurement,

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003 2082 2003 2002
Nates Soog §o0n S0 §o0n

Bank guarantees in faveur of customers, supplisrs or

various bullding sweers for aceess to their buildings 3800

119

3800
1,18

{nan Share Plan

Total contingent labilities
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{onsofidated Parent ety

The consalidated entity has varying service level requirements built into their sales confracts, B the reguiraments of 2003 2062 2603 2002

these service kevels are nat met, penalties and for additipnal togls may be incurred. Management is net aware of any

Notes a0 $000 Y ItH] $000

instances where penatties of 2 material nature have became due and do not have any reasan to balieve any of a Finasice leases

material nature wilt be incurred in the future, Future finance lease rentals of property, plant and
Uecarnm's Loan Share Plan involves interest free non-recourse lnans being offered to eligible smployees to acquire equipment, provided for in the financial statements
shares in the Campany. Uecamem's recourse is fimited to the value of the share price at the date an smplayee and payable:

terminates employment. At 31 December 2003, the balance outstanding of the loans was §35 mifian (2002; $33 Within ane year

million}. ¥ 2l employees were Yo cease their employment, the value of this laan would aet be recavered. Uecamm hag Later than ene year but nat later than five years

provided $2.1 milion agaimst this balance for thase employees wha have departed. The tonlingent Bability is

approdimately $1.4 million (2062: $1.1 milficn), wivich represents emplovees current 2t 31 Desember 2003, Minimum lezse payments

Less: Future finance charges

Recognised s a hahility

Total tease liabilitias

Gonsalidated Parent enlity
2003 2002 2003 2002 Reprasenting lease fabifities:
fintes L1151 NI 506 $o0c
Surrent 15
Capital commitmenis Nan-curent 18

Cammitments for the acquisition of plant and
equipment eontracted for at the reporting date
tut not recognised as liabilities, payable:

188 LLE - .

Operating feases are entared into as o medns of acquiring access to property. Rental payments are generally fixed, but
with inflation escalation clauses on which contingent rentals are determined. No renewal or purchase options exist in

Within one year . A . N o o o
retation fo operating leases and no sperating leases contain restrictions on financing achvities,

13840

Non-canceHable aperating loases
Future oparating lease remtals of property, not pravided
for in the financial statements and payalte:

Within one year
Later than one year hat not later than five years
Later than five years
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{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2003 2002

Notes §o00 $o00 Y ItH] $000

Employes entitiement liahilities

Pravisign for employes entiffements
Eurvent 18
Han-cutrent H

Agyregate employee entitlemant Bability

Employes numbers Number Number

Number of employees at the end of the reporting periad 138 il . .

s explained in note 1{n}{H), the amounts fer long service leave are measured at their present values. The weighted
average tlisceunt rate used to measure the present value was 5.5% (2002 5.8%),

Hecomm empiayee share and oplion plans

(i} Beneral Share Plan

Hecomm offered an initiaf free grant of 500 ardinary shares ta 78 employees upon initial public offering of the Gompany
turing 2000. During the vear, the Gompany issued 333,300 shares ta 107 emgployees for nif consideration porsuant to
the General Share Plan appraved by sharsholders on 1) August 2000, Thus oifer was not provided 1o the senier
executives. Any further granis may be affered at the discrefion of the directors.

{i.) Loan Share Plan

The initial offer under this Plan was made to 78 ermployees and two directors pursuant to the Prospeetus dated B
August 2000 and the Plan Rules, and involved the provision of an interest free nen-recourse loan fa acquire 1,374,500
shares ugan the mitial public listing of Uscomm. The halance outstanding of interest free non-recourse Joans at 31
December 2003 is $3,485,248 (2002: $3.485,248).

{iii.y Option Plan

Seniar executives and twa directors selected by the Baard were afferad aphions to subscribe for shares at the fime of
the initiat public offering of the company in 2000, Tuwring the year 753,775 optians {2002: 4,576,000} were granted,
As at hialanee date §.568,375 aptions (27 5,442,600} were outstanding which had been issued at no cost

{2007: no cast). Refer note 21(o).

{iv.) Parformance Rights
During the year 3,994,280 (2002 nih) performance rights were granted. As at balance date 3,994,280 (2002: aif) were
autstanding which had been issued at no cost. Refer note 21{d).

{v.} lnvestment Share Plan

(e 7 August 2002, Uecomm offered the Chairman 578,000 srdinary shares through salary sacrifice. Under the
Investmant Share Plan Rules the shares are restricted for a period of ten years or upon leaving the service af the
(ompany, or when writhen consent Jor the removal of the restriction i reeeived from the Board {which aver aceurs
first). Buring the year, the Ehairman was issued with 2 further 230,000 shares through salary saerifice.

Superannuation commitments

The majority of permanent smployess of the conselidated entity, and casual employees hired directly, are required o be
members of Euipsuper {the Fund), (fermerly the Yiclorian Energy Industry Superannuation Fund), Permanent
employeas sngaged after 2 October 1994 and aH direct hire casual employees are members of an accumulation plan
{Divisian 0}, During the year 1o 31 December 2003, the consolidated entity contributed ta the Fund at a rate of 834
{202: 8% ta 3046/02; 9% to 1M12/02). There is one permanent smployee who is 2 mamber of Division © of the Fund,
which provides defined bengfits in the form of 2 lump sum. This defined henefit scheme is closed to new mambars, Tivision
{ members ean eontribute at 0%, 3% or 6 %, Defined benefit members can tap up infe the acourmutation plan.

e consolidated entity’s payment in respect of defined benefit members was funded from the surplus of the Fund
thrnughaut the year 2003, Members of the Fund hecome entitled ta a benefit from the Fund when they cease emplaymant
with the censolidated entity.

Actuarial assessments of the fund are made at no more than three vearly intervals, and the last such assessment was
made at 36 Juee 202,

The effective date of the last audit of the entity's Employer Benefit Acoount at Equipsuper was 30 June 2003,
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Based on that audit, the Fund’s sRuation in respect of the consolidated entity's Employer Benefit Accout as at
30 June 2003 was:

Gonsolidated Parent entity
2003 2002 2063 2002
liotes L1151 NI 506 $o0c

Net market value of assets held by the Fund fo meet

future hanefit payments il

Present value of employees’ accrusd benefits 20

Exeess of the assets held over the present value of
smployess’ arcrued benefits fo meet future benefit payments

Vested benefits

The above amounts were measurad as at 30 June of each vear, or in the case of employer contritutions, amounts refate
tn the years ended 30 Juna,

Yested benefits are benefits which are not conditional upon continued membership of the Tund (or any factor other than
resignation from the Tund) and include benefits which membars were entitled to receive had they terminated thelr Fund
membership as at the reparting date. There were ne employee cantributions to the defined beneft fund during 2003
and 2002 due to the fund being on 2 contribution holiday.

DBirectars

The namaes of persoens whe were directors of Uscomm at any tme during the financial year are as follows;

RYY Hokzwarth: LP Shore; LU Hall: M Eraven; RJ Stewart; K& Stamm; OP Evansorn; TG Healey and JR Cahill. Ml of
these persans were alse directars during the year ended 37 Becember 2002 except for TU Heatey and JR Cahill, whe
were appointed during the year, In addition K8 Stamm, RY Halzwarth and OP Evanson resigred during the yaar.

Remuneration and retirement benrefits
Infarmation an remuneration and retirement benefits of direclors is diselvsed in note 25,

Lazng ta directors and director-refated entities
Nir ¥ Uraven and By RJ Stewart have been given interest free non-recourse lnans under the Loan Share Plan, which i
available io efigible employees, directars or a secretary of the cansolidated entity.
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The value of the loan far each direator as at 31 December 2003 is $48,970 {2002 $48,970). Mo ather foans have heen
advanced Io directars during the year ended 31 December 2003 and no other loans fo directars are sutstanding a8 at
31 December 2003,

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2603 2002
Motes $ 3 L §

Secured lpans 40,948 08 940

Transactions of directers and directer-related eatities concemning shares ar share aptisns
Agyrenate numbers of shares and share aptions of Uecomm acquired or disposed of by directors of Decamm, or their
directar-refated entities:

Parent entity and consalidated
2603 2002
Notes Kumiser  lumber

240000

Brdinary share aptions

Aggregate numbers of shares and share options in Uecomm held directly, indirectly o beneficially by directors of
Hecomm and the consofidated entity or their director-refated entities at balance date:

Parent entity and consalidated
2003 2002
Bumber  lumber

043,854
512500

Brdinary shares - parant entity
fplions over ordinary shares - parent entity

Other transactinis with directors and director-related entities

Purchases af telecommunications services from the econamic enfity are made by related parties, including dirsctars of
the gonsofidated entity. These transactions are undertaken on normal commercial terms and conditiens. There are gther
transactians which are conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions, ne more favourable than those with
which it is reasonable to axpect the entity would have adepted if dealing with the director or director-related entity at
am's length in similar circumstances.

Bn 2 February 2004, Uscomum entered into 2 five year contract far the provisien of fite hroadhand infrastructure fo
Urwired Limitad, 2 company of which Mr LP Shore is a directnr. The contract was negoliated on an arms’ {ength bagis,
and an commarcial terms,



Directers fees paid and payahle to;

{ansolidated Parent entity
2603 2002 2003 2002
ntes ] $ 5 3

255,747 265,141
99,398 49,849

365,746 365,748

Directors
Associated companies

Whelly-ewned group

The wholly-awned group eonsists of Hecomm and its whally-oweed contralled antities, UE Acepss Piy Uid, Unite.com Ply
Lt and Uecomm Operations Pty Lid. Bwrership inferasts in these contralled entities are set aut in note 32,
Transactions belween Uecomm and nther entities in the wholly-owed group during the years ended 31 Decamber 2003
and 2002 consisted of;

{i} vans advaneed by Hecomm

{H} loans repaid to Uecomm

(i) the payment af inferest an the above loans

{iv) the payment for the provision of various services befween various members of the group, and

{v} the sale of assets By Uscamm.

Parent entity
2003 2002
Soen $o08

Agyregate ampunts included in the defermination of profit from ordinary
activities hefare income tax that resulted fram transactions with
entities in the wholly-awned group:

Interest revenue 1057
Aggregate ampunts receivable from/payable fo entities i the

wholty-tweed graup at balance date:

Nen-gurrent receivaties (sans) 330685
Pravisiost for doublful non-current reeeivablas {173,198)

{Hher related parties
Aguragate amounts included in the determination of profit from nedinary activities before income tax that resulted from
transactians with sach class of sther related parties:

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003 2082 2003 2002
Nates Soog §o0n S0 §o0n

{ither revenue
{antrolling entities
Jammardy eantrofied entities

1575
15

Interast expease
{aniroHing entity
(ommardy cantrofied enfities

760
1508

760
1,506

{ither expanse
(antrofing entities
Jommardy cantrofied entities

1,893
602

Aguregate amounts brought fa account in relation to other transactions with each class of other refated parties:

Cansofirated Parent entity
2003 2082 2003 2002
Nates Soog §o0n S0 §o0n

Lnans advanced from:

(antrofing entity 1,400 468

(ammanly cantrofied enfities 15,128 15,120
Lnan repayments to:

(antrofing entity 1000 768

{ammanly cantrofied entities 4,278 4220
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Agtpregate amounts receivable from, and payable to, each class of other related parties at balance date:

Gonsalidated Parent enlity
2003 2002 2063 2002
fiotes 009 $000 L3113} $600

Current receivables

Gontrafling entity 1 -
Gommanly contralled entities - “
Nor-current receivaiies
Contralied entities {oans) - 016
Current payables
Contrafling entity il -
Commanly controlled eniities - -
Kon-current payables
Contrafling entity 35,000 35,000
Contrufling entities
At 31 Becember 2003, the ultimate cantrolfing entity of Uscomm Limited is Alinta Limitad.
At 31 December 2003, Yecamm has the follewing contralled entities:
Kame of entity Place of Share Type b; shares held
incargoration 003 a2
14 B
UE Actess Ply L Australia Ordinary w0l e
Unite.com Pty Lid* Australia Ordinary w0l e
Uscarm Operations Pry Lid* Aushralia {irdinary 00 08
UE Vialight Pty Lid# Hustralia {irdinary 18 bl

# This is 2 small proprietary company and is not required o prepare financial statements,
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*

These companies have entered inta a deed of erosg guarantes dated 28 Hovember 2000 with Uecomm Limited
which provides that ail parties ta the deed will guarantee each creditor payment in full of any debt of each company
participating in the deed on winding-up of that company. As a result of 2 class order 8871418 issued by the
Austrakian Securities and Investments Gommission, these companies are refieved from the requirement to prepare
financial statements.

The Statements of Financiat Performance and Statements of Financial Position for the parties to the class order
{ie: closed group) have nat been disclesed as they are nat materially different from the Statements of Financial
Performance and Statements of Financial Position of the consolidated entity.

o3

The anyping expansion and continued operation of Uecomm's network depends on 2 number of access arangements
with third parties. if Uecomm is not able Yo maintain or secure suitable access rights at the prices forseast, if existing
rights are terminated early or the underlying infrastrecture is damaged or remaved o refocated, or if there is a delay in
SBCHring new o7 renewing existing actess rights, there may be 2 material adverse effect an Uscomm’s finaneial position
and performance.

The consalidated entity &5 alse dependant on the angeing suppert through the Subordinated Lean Facility from
#linta Finance Ply Ltd.

Na gther matters or sircumstances have arisen between 37 December 2003 and the date of this repart that have
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operatians of the tonselidated entity in future years, the results of
thase operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future years.



{ansolidated

Pragfit/ (foss) from ordinary activities sfter income fax

Depreciation and amortisatian

Loss on property, plant and equipment

Profit anf {write dowe) of nvestment

Decrease {inergase) in accrued revenus
Decrease {incrgase) in current receivables
Decrease {incrgase) in future income tax benefit
Decrease {incrgase) in aen-current receivables
Decrease {increase) in prepayments

Decrease {increase) in deferred expenses
increase (decrease} in creditors and acoruals
increase (decrease) in provision for doultful debts
increase (decrease) in income tax payable
inerease {decrease) in deferred revenue
increase {decrease) in other provisions

Net cash inflow {outflaw} from eparating activities

$o00 §060

{5.473)
10,578
5,766
{45l
#1
(2514
{3.958)
514
LRI
(280)
{5,335

Parent entity
2002 2003

(Uansolidated

2003 2082

Hotes Cents fents
Basie earnings per share ' 1.4
{luted sarmings per share 1.1

Basie earnings per security hefore significant items
using the weighted average of erdinary securities
for the year

Mteretative diluted sarnings per share

The afternative basic and diluted sarnings per share amaunts have besn cafculaied to axclude the impact of significant
toms. Significant items are those which have affected the results of the entity during the year which management
heligve are putside the ordinary operations of the business.

(Uansolidated
2403 082
Hates Number  Numbser

{ansolidated

Acquisition of plant and equipment by means
uf finance {eases

m

Parent entity
2002 2003
$o08 Soen

Weighted average sumber of shares used
as the denominator

\Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as

the denominater in caloulating basic earnings per share 15,079,800

Waighted average number of grdinary shares used as

the denominater it calculating diluted earnings per share 3, 188:186 505,218 858

The following Exseutive Share Gptians have not been included i the calouation of diluted £PS as they are not dilutive:
« Brant date 14 September 2000 272 500 aptians
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Gonsalidated
2083 o

Recanciliations of earnings used in calculating
garnipgs per share

Basic and alternative hasic sarnings per share
Net profit/ {loss)

Earmings used in calculating basic samings per share
Siyrificant tems

Earnings used in caloulating alternative basic camings per share

Diluted and alternative diluted earnings per sharg
Net prafit

Earings used in calculating diluted earnings per share
Styrificant items

Earnings used in caloulating attematve divled earmings per share
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Notes 5008 oo

{5478

{5411
a2

{5,001

{5478

{5411
a2

681 {6001)

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

Uecomm Limited
Directors™ declaration
31 December 2003

The directors declars that the financial sistemants and notes set out on
pages 17 to 58:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards in Ausiralia, the Corporations
Regulations 2003 and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements; and

(b} give & true and fair view of Uecomm and the consolidated entity’s
financial position as at 3% December 2003 and of their performance, as
represented by the resuits of their operations and their cash flows, for
the financial year ended on that date.

In the direciors' opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2003%; and

(b} there are reascnable grounds to befieve that the Company wil be
able to pay #s debts as and when they become due and payabie, and
the companies and parent entity, who are parly io the deed described in
note 32, wil fogether be able to meet any obligations or kabifties o
which they are, or may become subject, by virtue of the deed of cross
cuzrantes dated 29 Novernber 2000.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the direciors.

e
Robert J Stewart
Director
telboume

26 Febreary 2004



Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibifity

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial
pericimance, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements,
and the directors’ declasation for both Uscomm Limited {the "Company"} and the
Consolidated entity for the year ended 20 June 2003, The Consolidated Entiy comprises
both the Company and the entifies it controlied during that year,

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and frue and fair
presentation of the financiai report in accordence with the Corporations Actf 2061, This
includes responsibifity for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
records and internal cordrols that are designed fo prevent and detect fraud and errar, and
tor the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducied an independent audit io express an opinion 1o the members of the
Company. Our Audit was conducted in accordance with Ausiralian Auditing Standards in
order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material
missiatement. The nature of an acdit is influenced by faciors such as the use of
professional iudgement, selective festing, the inherent Emitations of internal control, and
the gvailability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot
guarzntee that ail material missiztements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting
Standards and other mandatory firanciad reporting requzements in Austrafia, a view
which is consisient with our understanding of the Company's and Conscofidafed Entity's

finarcial position, and thelr performance as represented by the resuits of their cperations

and cash fiows.

KPIG,

CINBEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO MEMBERS OF UECOMM LIMITED

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these proceduores, which included:

examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, and

assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
regsonabieness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial
reporiing when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was net
designed fo provide assurance on intemal contrals,

independence
In conducting our audit, we tollowed applicabls independence requiremenis of Ausiraiian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial repori of Uscomm Limited is in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i. gwing a froe end fair view of the Company's and Consclidated Ertity's financia
position as at 31 December 2003 and their performance for the tirancial yesr
ended on that date; and

i, complying with Accounting Standards in Australiz and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

b) cther mandatory professional reporting requirements in Austrafia.

KPIMG D Pasguarieliz
Pariner

28 Februeary 2004
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INFORMATION RELATING TC SHAREHOLDERS AT 31 MARCH 2004

The foliowing information is exiracted from the Company's Register of Shareholders:

Shareholders Shares
Band (shares) Nurnber Y% Number Yo
1 - 1,000 9743 1782 2651032 0.5%
1,001 - 5,000 8,084 & 78 21,293,833 418
5,001 - 10,000 1 8645 1238 15,047 0% 3.08
10,001 - 100,000 2165 414 81,743,370 1913
100,001 - OVER 148 0,07 LESTRS ST 2019
TOTAL 15,305 100.00 509,243,100 100.00

*fncludes a total of 3,030 shareholders holding less than the marketable parcel of 1,493 shares

A substaniial shareholder is one who has a relevant inierest in 5% or more of the toial
issued shares in the Company. As at 31 March 2004, the foilowing shareholder details
had been advised to the Company:

Number
Name of Shares Yo
Alinta Limited 335,000,000 55,78

Tre vating rights of shareholders are governed by the Company's Constitution.

The holders of the Company's shares have the right to atiend and vote at meetings of the
Company's shareholders, They also have the right fo appoint a proxy fo attend anc voie at
such meetings on their behalf,
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Number of % of 1ssued

Name Shares Shares
Alinta Limited 336,000,000 £5.78
ANZ Nominses Limied 11,291,600 .90
Nationai Nominees Limited 7,588,704 1.4%
Johs Steven Lundgren 3,975,000 0.64
J P Margan Nominees Austrafia Limited 2 693,500 (.53
Mount Besuty Properties Pty Ltd 2,200,000 0.43
Dr John Audley Bawbyes 2,000,000 0.39
Gordon Terrace Py Ltd (Jerkins Super Fund A/C) 2,000,000 0.36
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd 1,808,403 0.36
UEC Shere Pians Custodian Piy Lid

{Snare Acquis Loan Pian A/C) 1,695,000 0.33
Citicorp Neminees Pty Limited 1,622,372 0.32
Mr Leonard Peter Shore 1,400,000 027
UEC Share Pians Custodian Py Lid

{Ex Empioyes SALP Helding A/C) 1,323,200 0.26
Fortis Clearing Nominees P/L (Settlement A/C) 1,200,000 0.24
Citicorp Neminges Pty Limited

(CFSIL OZDAQ Hi Tec Indx ASC) 1,387,900 0.23
Mr Robert Ferguson & Mrs Jennifer Ferguson

{Torsyburmn Seper Fund A/C) 950,000 0,19
Totat Peripherals Pty Ltd (Super Fund A/C) 750,000 0.8
Ciach Holdings Pty Lid (Ciach Trading A/C) 700,114 0.14
Mr Ancrew Roy Newbery Sisson 630,000 0.14
Mr Damien Edward Brady & Mrs Wendy Joy Brady 633,343 0.12
TOTALS 380,013,214 74.62
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